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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B 5 4 22

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE_Z——_F=R=+—HItFE

ok 2011
—E-_—F —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET F&TT
Revenue ON
— Continuing operations — BECEED 748 -
— Discontinued operations — BERIEEEER 2,038 3,480
2,786 3,480
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to KREVER ANELATE
the owners of the Company (E518) =7
— Continuing operations — REBEEEY (7,293) (16,173)
— Discontinued operations — BARIHEEETS 1,031 2,890
(6,262) (13,283)

Net asset/(liability) value per share R=ZA=1+—H2Z28K
at 31 March BE/(BE)FE HK$0.07 &7t (HK$0.22 %)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

LR

The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of China Investment Development Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2012.

Principal Activities

The Company and its subsidiaries are engaged in investment holding
for medium to long-term capital appreciation purposes, and
investment in listed and unlisted securities. There have been no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities
during the year.

Change of Name

Pursuant to a special resolution passed in the special general meeting
on 3 January 2012, the name of the Company was changed from
Temuijin International Investments Limited Z=H BB & AR A 7 to
China Investment Development Limited #1 B 1% & F3 3 A R A A

Results and Appropriations

The consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2012 are set out in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages 40 and
41, respectively, of the consolidated financial statements. The
directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during the
year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital
Details of the authorised and issued share capital of the Company are
set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the statement of change in
equity of the Group and the Company on page 44 and in note 28 to
the consolidated financial statements.

EEeRETEREFAZARQAA(ARA]) KA
MERR(SBEIAEENDEBEE-_FT——-F=A
=t RALFEZFRMEERRAMBERE -

EFREK
ARBREMBARIZIEZEB NI ERENES
THERHENIRE  ARKRE LW RIFLETES
FAAREZEIEXHEHETREAEE) -

BEXEE

BER - —F-A=-HEF2ERERSHE
BZRFRRZFEER KNAAEEED BATemuin
International Investments Limited Z5B BB R & AR A
7] % 274 China Investment Development Limited /7
WEREBRAT

FERDIK
AEEBE_T-—_F=-A=1-HLEFEZHA
EBHNFREPBRERDBIHF 40 k41 A2 iRA S

REGEEHRERT EFTUBEAREAFE
ZH“% °

EEME BERXBERAFEZEBFBENES
AU BHREMFET
&N

RABZEERBBITRAFBEINGS
BFE27 ©

BF 7%k

E 3]

AEBRARBRARNFEZ FHEBDFBHNE 44
AZAKERARAREEH R LGS P IBEHREM
Foge
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

LR

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 March 2012, in the opinion of the Directors, the Company
had no reserves available for distribution to shareholders (2011:
HK$nil).

Major Customers and Suppliers

As the Group is engaged in investment holding for medium to
long-term capital appreciation purposes, and investment in listed and
unlisted securities, there are no major customers and suppliers during
the year.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 120. This summary
does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Mark Damon Go (Resigned on 6 April 2011)

Mr. Tang Hin Keung, Alfred (Resigned on 6 April 2011)

Mr. Kwok Ho On, Anthony (Resigned on 6 April 2011)

Mr. Ahn Do I (Resigned on 6 April 2011)

Mr. Liu Hui (Appointed on 6 April 2011)

Mr. Wong Chak Keung (Appointed on 6 April 2011)

Mr. Zhang Ying Hui (Appointed on 6 April 2011 and
resigned on 15 March 2012)

Mr. Chan Cheong Yee (Appointed on 29 May 2012)

A 2k f#E
RZE——F=ZA=+—H BFBFRE  AQRFIL
A DRTREZEE(CE—F : TBT) °

TEEFRHER
HRAEEZIZEBIHRBERENESTHER
HERIZE URKRE LM RIFLETRES - B
AEEAETBERS RMER -

B

AEERBERAENBRFEZ£E AERAEY
BERNE120E - WHED FEREB RSB
BEREPES -

o
RAFREARBEEAREBRZARBRESTNT

HITES
Mark Damon Go %% (RZF——FMANHEHE)
BT8R & (RZZ——FMANBET)
PR E (RZF——FMANEET)
RiBREE (RZZ——FMANEET)
el (R=ZZ——FMABEZE)
HEREE (RZF——FMANHEZT)
REBEE (RZE——FNAASBEZAR
R-E——%=A+RBAFT)
BREZ%E (R=Z——FRA-TNAEZT)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

LR

Directors (continued)
Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chen Yibiao (Appointed on 6 April 2011 and
removed on 18 April 2012)
Mr. Deng Li (Appointed as the non-executive
director and Chairman of the
Company on 23 March 2012

and 18 April 2012 respectively)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Li Man Nang (Resigned on 6 April 2011)

Mr. Choi Yong Seok (Resigned on 6 April 2011)

Mr. Leung Chi Hung (Resigned on 11 April 2011)

Mr. Ngan Woon Man, Eddie (Resigned on 11 April 2011)

Mr. Fong Wo, Felix (Appointed on 6 April 2011)

Mr. Ba Shusong (Appointed on 6 April 2011 and
resigned on 11 August 2011)

(Appointed on 6 April 2011)

(Appointed on 10 November 2011 and

Mr. Tang Ping Sum

Mr. Lung Chee Ming George
resigned on 1 May 2012)

Mr, Leung Wing Kin (Appointed on 22 June 2012)

In accordance with clause 120 of the Company’s bye-laws (“Bye-

laws”), Mr. Chan Cheong Yee, Mr. Deng Li and Mr. Leung Wing Kin

will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible

offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

Each of the non-executive directors’ terms of office is subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting in
accordance with the Bye-laws.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 33 to 36 of the
annual report.

EE(E)

FHITES :

BRI 5 (RZT——FMANBEZIR
RZE——FMA+\BER)
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HREE (R=Z——FMAXBEZRT)

BRI AE (EC ?--i@ﬂﬁﬁﬁéé&&

—FNA+—REHT)

HRHEE (m —FENANBEZRT)

BETHEE (m:g——¢+ AtEEZAR
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iy St (m:z ZERNAZTZBEZE)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

P

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in
Shares and Underlying Shares

As at 31 March 2012, the interests and short positions of the
Directors, the chief executive and their associates of the Company in
the shares, underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to Division 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which the directors and the chief executives and
their associates of the Company were deemed or taken to have
under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required to be and
were recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
the Stock Exchange as follows:

Long Positions

Name of Director Capacity

EEgR

&t

Liu Hui (note a) Interest of controlled

FE (Mfita)

corporation
RS AR 2 B

Chen Yibiao (note a) Interest of controlled
BRZCAZ (Htita) corporation
RGN E 2 B
Note:

a. The shares of the Company are held by Jade Bright Limited. Each of
Mr. Liu Hui and Mr. Chen Yibiao has interest in Jade Bright Limited.
Accordingly, Mr. Liu Hui and Mr. Chen Yibiao are deemed to have
interest in the Shares held by Jade Bright Limited.

EERTFETHRAERROREBERG 2
=

WZE——F=A=+—0B  ARAEE TBTK
ABREZEZHEATRAQARERAELE(T&
REHRBEEN((BERBEED]EXVE) 2
Btn RARRA IR (D R B ZERIEE FH R EEIRHIE XV
BETRESHBHNERRANBEREIIHER
RENBRA) 2 X R AR (BEARRIEERE
ZITRABURESZHBEATREESRBERK
Blz BREMERE IR AEA ZESNAR)
BAELARDAIRIRE S R AR GHIE 352 181FEZ
BroMAzERRKE  SBRBEZMES LT
MATEMRADFTEH LM AR EBRITESRS
B A Sr A ([ 2ESF A ) & A QD &) ik 32 B 2 4
mEORBIT

3y

Approximate

Number of percentage of

shares held shares in issue
HERITRG

iR &E BABED
463,732,000 73.57%
463,732,000 73.57%

Kt -

a. ARBRGERAFRABGE - 2@BEERRER
EESEARBRAEGRABTTHEEER - Eit - BEL
ERRERRERRMENRRBFRQAFE 2RO
e -

CHINA INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT LIMITED HFE#EMZER AT
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
A

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in BEERTETHAERRORMEBERG 2
Shares and Underlying Shares (continued) R (E)
Share Option B

On 9 April 2009, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the R=—ZZTAFEIMANE - NA G RMERETEI([F
“Scheme”) under which the Board may at its discretion grant any 2| |) - Bt - EE ST BIERLERE T EAERA
eligible participant share options, as it may determine appropriate. &AEZAEKLEHE -HEB T NFWUANH
The Scheme is valid and effective for a period of ten years #E+EFHRNER LA HEETSE—FES
commencing on 9 April 2009, after which no further options may be 8¢ #% & (E{a] B A% -

offered or granted.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share  FERBEADBANEE 7 BEREZE)
options during the year:

Lapsed/ Number

Granted Exercise cancelled of option

Date of Exercise Exercisable during during during  outstanding
grant price period the year theyear theyear at31.3.2012
R=B-—=F

=+-H
EREH CE
%: T e

Directors
==
Wong Chak Keung 30.3.2012 0.2552 30.3.2012- 6,300,000 — — 6,300,000
HER —E——F 30.3.2017
=A=1H —T—C
—RA=+H
E-T—+F
=A=1+H
Deng Li 30.3.2012 0.2552 30.3.2012- 6,300,000 — — 6,300,000
N —E——fF 30.3.2017
—A=1H “ET-CF
—A=+H
EE—+F
—RA=+H
Fong Wo, Felix 30.3.2012 0.2552 30.3.2012- 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
J7 A0 —E-F 30.3.2017
=A=+H —E—F
=A=+H
EZE—+F
—RA=+H

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 F#
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
A

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in EERFETBRAERROREBRS 2
Shares and Underlying Shares (continued) R (E)
Share Option (continued) BERRRE (E)

Lapsed/ Number

Granted Exercise cancelled of option

Date of Exercise Exercisable during during during  outstanding
grant price period the year theyear theyear at 31.3.2012
R-B-=F

=A=t-H
FRKK AT
JE# BRABE

Tang Ping Sum 30.3.2012 0.2552 30.3.2012- 1,000,000 — — 1,000,000
TS —E——f 30.3.2017
=A=+R —Ef
—A=+H
ETE—+F
=A=+H

14,600,000 — — 14,600,000

Employees/consultants 30.3.2012 0.2552 30.3.2012- 27,200,000 — — 27,200,000
g8, /B —E—- 30.3.2017
=ZA=+A —T=F
—A=+H
BT —+F
—A=+H

Grand Total 41,800,000 - — 41,800,000

4t

Further details of the share option are set out in note 30 to the  BEMEE —SHBHNEA P BIREMESI0 -
consolidated financial statements.

CHINA INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT LIMITED HFE#EMZER AT
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LR

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in
Shares and Underlying Shares (continued)

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 31 March
2012 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or Chief Executive and their
associates of the Company, or their spouses or children under the
age of 18, to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or its associated corporation.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or the Chief Executive
and their associates of the Company had or was deemed to have any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation
(within in meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies contained in the Listing Rules as at 31 March 2012.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 March 2012, other than the interests of certain directors as
disclosed under the section headed “Directors’ and chief executives’
interests in shares and underlying shares” above, the interests and
short positions of persons in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, who is,
directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of
any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
at general meetings of any other members of the Group, or
substantial shareholders as recorded in the register of substantial
shareholder required to be kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO were as follow:

EERFETRAEBREOREBERG 2
s (E)

BEXFBEBENS REE-F-—FZA=+—
B2 AR - AR AR B R FL
B2RAMZY SARAEEREETHRARR
BEZHMEAT ABEZMEARBTNARZF
A R B R AR 1 A o AR A B 2 B 19 oK £ 5

)

N
|

£

o

B EXFREEN KRB F=A=+—H K
RABERTBTRABRREZHEALHER
ARRREAAREEE (EEREFREERDE
XVER) 2 EAR D - HERDRESFTEARELAR
B s LB GGIFE 352 6 FE 2 B MANERE
LHRAFAE LT ARERETES R HNEEST
AIHE AR B R FrZ SRR -

FERR

REB-——F=A=+t—HB BLX[EEREET
BABR B KA 2 ] —EMIEZET
ExzEREI RARRRGD MEERODHERA
RIBES M EGDIEXVERE 2 R 3D # 2 R E M A
RABBEZEBERRE  AEXXREEEH AR
MARMERBR TEAEBERNEMKE R E 2R
RARE LRE 2RI ATEES% A Lz
FNARBIREEF M AERPIE 386 EMFEZE
ERRECMACEBEIZRRZALNT
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
A

Substantial Shareholders (continued) FERRK(E)
Long Position in the Shares REHZFR
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of Shareholders Capacity shares held shares in issue
HERITRG
BREEZHB &4 iR &E BABEDL
Jade Bright Limited (note a) Beneficial owner 463,732,000 73.57%
RPBFRAF (Mita) E=EAA
Bestlead Group Limited (note a and b) Interest of controlled 463,732,000 73.57%
Bestlead Group Limited (#fiFa X b) corporation

ey INCIw: £

Liu Yuanyuan (note a) Interest of controlled 463,732,000 73.57%
2z % (Mita) corporation
SR il NS v 2

Jin Xiaoging (note a) Interest of controlled 463,732,000 73.57%
&/\e& (Biita) corporation
RYEHIA R 2

Notes: Bat -
a.  Jade Bright Limited is a private company owned as to 30% owned by & ZRERDARILART - B2 5L L - Bestlead
Mr. Liu Hui, 29% owned by Bestlead Group Limited, 26% owned by Group Limited * BIEEZ T K&/ @k EDRIESR

Ms. Liu Yuanyun, and 15% owned by Mr. Jin Xiaogiang. 30% * 29% * 26% [ 15% 2 ©

b.  Bestlead Group Limited is a private company wholly and beneficially ~ b.  Bestlead Group Limited &84 A2 7] » B A4 7] A &

owned by Mr. Chen Yibiao, a former director of the Company. Mr. Chen FERTBAEREESRA - REREEREERE
Yibiao is deemed to have interest in the Shares indirectly held by Bestlead Group Limited B# #5482 I fn A #E s
Bestlead Group Limited. Mr. Chen Yibiao is also a director of Bestlead BRZEAR S5 4 J1 /% Bestlead Group Limited # 5 -

Group Limited.

CHINA INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT LIMITED HFE#EMZER AT
12



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

LR

Substantial Shareholders (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2012, the Directors of the
Company were not aware of any other person (other than the
directors of the Company) who had an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO or, who is, directly or indirectly, interested in 5%
or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other
members of the Group, or any other substantial shareholders whose
interests or short positions were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Apart from as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and chief
executives’ interests in shares and underlying shares” above, at no
time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or of any other
body corporate granted to any Directors or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors, their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age to acquire such rights in the Company
or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interest in Contracts of Significance
and Connected Party Transactions

No Director had a significant beneficial interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company was a party during or at the end of the year.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

FTERR(E)

B ENFRREEN  RZE——F=A=+—H K
RAEBFUNHBAEMEMAL(ARRESFRIN)
RARRBRDHEBAROPEEAREES AR
BEPIZEXVEE 2 R 3D B Z MEMA R BIWEE 2 s
KB SN E S R M R AT R E AR
TEAEEEMEMKERRZBERAEG LKRRE
E BRI AREES% A F s - KBRER AR
AIREE S RGP E 336 1517 B 2 B LM ATRE
BREDZIRR ZEMEMBERRR

ESWBROIES ZEF

BREXTEEREBITRABRED LB 2 #
3| —ETREESN  RAFEEAEMERE - AQw
VERTFEAES  FEZBZEBIAM TR
ZFRAFEBARR B REREMEARRE 2R
SRS ES 2 EF - WERETERREEN  AQ
A A AR E2 B L - BEEE -
mEREBZEBHRBTN\RZ FRRARRHE
R AbE AN ERRESHREEN -

EERERGHRBEALR G 2ERHE

BEEENARAEFARNFESEFTLHEAEE
EBAERBREZERNEGOT  BEEARMEERS

e

AETE

o

Bk

EECRBEEHN
R EERRBFASLERZEEVEEAARNRF
I ARB AR —FERANMERE CEERERIN)
M L2 RIBEL
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

As at the date of this report, none of the Directors and their respective
associates had any interest in a business which causes or may cause
a significant competition with the business of the Group and any
other conflicts of interest which any such person has or may have
with the Group.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Shares

During the year, the Company had not purchased, sold or redeemed
any of its listed securities.

Material Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries
On 23 August 2011, the Group disposed of a wholly-owned
subsidiary, Temujin Investment Strategic Il Limited, at a consideration
of HK$2,105,000. Save as above, there was no material acquisition
or disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2012.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or
the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to the existing shareholders.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules
during the year and up to the date of this report.

Audit Committee

The Company set up an Audit Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. Amongst other duties,
the principal duties of the Audit Committee are to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control of the
Group. The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors of the Company, namely Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, Mr.
Tang Ping Sum and Mr. Leung Wing Kin. The audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

EERBERB 2ER

RABRSEY HMEEERREEEZBHBEALR
HARBEBBRKAIEBRERNBF ZEBTHE
BiEs REFATHMEBEREEBXAIEEIMA
RSB IR o

BE HEIEEARQT LHKRED

RER  AARGERBE - HEXELEEF LHHE

BEAREBERHENB QT
RZE——FNAZ+=ZH AEEHE2ENE
A A Temuijin Investment Strategic Il Limited + {8 &
2,105,000 7T « B bt EIN  REE T ——F=
A=+—RALFETESAREXLEWNBEAF -

BrABERE
RAMBINEREAR T EERE LB IR KX
BEARAEEERRLHIFRERRIE 2B EHN
Bt

NEERE
REBARRMBAFREMNMABEEMAE  RAF
EAMBEARERAH KRR —EHF TR
FIREZ RINBIFE ©

BEREESE
AARBRYBEREZES  WRE ETHAGIEE
EESE EEMSERBSET  EREEGTE
B AEREEAEE MK AREF LKA DE
e BREEBERARNT LB IEMITESARR
DRBFIGE BRREERREELE - BXE
EERENASEHEE T ——F=A=+—01
FEZISEZIHHRE -
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises of five directors including Mr.
Fong Wo, Felix, Mr. Tang Ping Sum and Mr. Leung Wing Kin, all of
them are independent non-executive directors, Mr. Deng Li, a non-
executive director and Mr. Wong Chak Keung, an executive director.
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix is the chairman of the Nomination Committee. It is
a newly formed committee with effect from 23 March 2012,

The primary function of the Nomination Committee is to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Group’s corporate strategy.

Remuneration Committee

A Remuneration Committee was established by the Company to
establish policies, review and determine the remuneration of the
directors and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee,
comprises the independent non-executive directors of the Company.
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2012 have been audited by HLM & Co who retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for
their re-appointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Deng Li
Chairman
Hong Kong, 26 June 2012
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB s 5L A

Financial Results

The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 March 2012 was
approximately HK$2,786,000, which represented a decrease of
approximately 19.9% when compared with that of last year. The
Group incurred a loss for the year attributable to the owners of the
Company amounting to approximately HK$6,262,000, which was
reduced by approximately HK$7,021,000 or 52.9% when compared
with the loss of approximately HK$13,283,000 incurred in last year.

The Group’s revenue was generated from interest income on
available-for-sale financial assets and loans to third parties during the
year. The decrease in the loss for the year were mainly attributed by
the gain on redemption of convertible bonds and the drop in interest
expenses for the same convertible bonds of the Company. By
granting share option to certain directors, employee and consultants
on 30 March 2012, the Company incurred equity-settled share-based
payments in the amount of approximately HK$4,730,000 for the year.

The net asset value per share of the Group as at 31 March 2012
amounted to HK$0.07 (2011: net liability value per share was
HK$0.22).

The Board has decided not to declare a dividend for the year.

Capital Reorganisation and Fund Raising
Activities

On 1 April 2011 (Bermuda time), the capital reorganisation of the
Company was effected by way of a reduction of share capital which
involved a subdivision of each ordinary share of HK$0.20 each into
20 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each and the cancellation of 19
out of every 20 issued shares in the share capital of the Company
after the subdivision of shares. The amount of the share capital
reduction was used to offset the accumulated losses of the
Company.

On 6 April 2011, 600,000,000 new shares of the Company were
issued and allotted at the subscription price of HK$0.10 per share.
The new shares had been issued and fully paid.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B W i L) B

Investment Portfolio REHE
As at 31 March 2012, the details of all investments of the Group were R_ZE—_F=A=+—H0 AEEREEREHS
summarised as below: BT -
Unlisted equity securities I LM RAEZ
Percentage
Place of Percentage Percentage of total
Name of incorporation/ of effective of voting Carrying assets as at
investee companies establishment interest held rights value 31/3/2012
1R
—E-CF
Fifs =A=+—-H
B L ZEERE
EZREQNFRE Bol i) %N ARE{E Bate
HK$000 HK$000
TET TET
ILC Co., Ltd. (note a) The Republic of 20% 20% 3,429 3,429 7.58%
ILC Co., Ltd. (#tita) Korea
i
Bonicast Construction PRC 49% 20% 6,080 6,074 13.43%
Material (Beijing) H

Co., Ltd. (note b)
SREXBEEMH(GER)
BRAR (MiFb)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B W i L) B

Unlisted debt securities FLEHES

Percentage

of total

Name of Place of Carrying assets as at
investee companies incorporation value 31/3/2012

ER=F—Z=—F

=A=+-H

EERENAER R AL 40 ES BEE *EERETDL
HK$’000 HK$’000
T it

Babie’s Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 9,500 9,283 20.52%
(note c) RBERHE

BERERAERAR (Mitc)

Splendid Beauty Salon British Virgin Islands 9,000 8,902 19.68%
Holding Co., Ltd. EBERHS

(formerly known as
Smart Planner Limited)
(note d)

B EHEHERTR
BRAF (AT1E
Smart Planner Limited)

(Htitd)

Financial assets designated as held for trading BEABFESURERE

Effective
holding Percentage
interest of total
held assets
Name of Nature of Number of by the Market as at
investee company security shares held Company value 31/3/2012

1ER

—E-—F

ENN S ==l

FisER ZEEHE

BEZRENRERE iz 5% e Bok
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THET

CIFG (note e) Equity 1,228,000 0.21% 863 614 -
FEKRBAESE RE=
(Ktite)

CHINA INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT LIMITED HE R & Z AR T
18



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB s 5L A

note a:

ILC Co., Ltd. (*ILC”) is principally engaged in producing, distributing and
managing self-service coin counting machines, information technology and
e-commerce business. The carrying amount of investment in ILC as at 31
March 2012 was KRW500,000,000, which was equivalent to approximately
HK$3,429,000. No dividend was received or receivable during the year. At 31
March 2012, the directors of the Company had assessed that no impairment
loss was required to be made for the investment in ILC. In April 2012, the
Company had disposed a subsidiary, Asia Light Limited and its subsidiary,
Temuijin Investments Korea Co., Limited which held the equity interest in ILC.

note b:

Bonicast Construction Material (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (“Bonicast Beijing”) is
principally engaged in trading of construction material in the PRC. At 31 March
2012, the carrying amount of investment in Bonicast Beijing was approximately
HK$6,074,000 and the directors of the Company had assessed that no
impairment loss was required to be made for the investment in Bonicast
Beijing. No dividend was received or receivable during the year.

note c:

On 29 September 2011, the Company invested the 8% unsecured convertible
bonds issued by Babie’s Holdings Limited (“Babie’s”) at a face value of
HK$9,500,000, bears coupon interest rate of 8% per annum. Babie’s is an
investment holding and its business is principally engaged in early childhood
education catering for children’s social, emotional and academic development
in the PRC. The convertible bonds due on 29 September 2015 (“2015
Convertible Bonds”) are convertible into fully paid ordinary shares of Babie’s
with a par value of USD1.00 each at a conversion price of HK$100,000 per
share. The Company can exercise the conversion at anytime until the maturity
date. In June 2012, the 2015 Convertible Bonds were fully redeemed by the
issuer.

note d:

On 30 September 2011, the Company invested the 8% unsecured convertible
bonds issued by Splendid Beauty Salon Holding Co., Ltd. (formerly known as
Smart Planner Limited) (“Splendid”) at a face value of HK$9,000,000, bears
coupon interest rate of 8% per annum. Splendid is an investment holding and
its business is principally engaged in professional and quality beauty
treatments, services and products in the PRC. The convertible bonds due on
30 September 2014 (2014 Convertible Bonds”) are convertible into fully paid
ordinary shares of Splendid with a par value of USD1.00 each at a conversion
price of HK$100,000 per share. The Company can exercise the conversion at
anytime until the maturity date. In June 2012, the 2014 Convertible Bonds
were fully redeemed by the issuer.

Hiita -
ILC Co., Ltd. ([ILCH FERFEEE - D EREEGYEHE
e BARBERETEEES- Eé_ ——E=ZA=+—

A - RILCZ % & Bk M 18 /500,000,000 7T ( £ 18 & K
3,429,000/ 70) c REFE RN FEE W EKRARE - R=F
—ZF=ZA=1+—8  ARAEFETEHEARRILCZE
BIEHAMBERE R-_Z——FmA » ARFHE—

fff B /A 7lAsia Light Limited & £ K B 2 & Temujin
ZENRIFHHILC 2 AE

Investments Korea Co., Limited *
= o

Fiato -

gHEEZEMHUL) ARAFA(TEHILR]) TZ2RH
BNEREMES - R_T—_F=ZA=+—H ReFIR
ZIRERMEEXNR6,074,0008 7T - MAXNREELTHEE
At g mit R 2 EERERBERE - AFERTED
sk RIS, -

Miete :
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FNAZTNAABH(ZZ—RAFTRRES]) - (TR
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FOEBAR o AR AT B EI A AT R R A TR ARARE o R =

—ZHEXRA ZE-RFURBREFEHBETATEE
@ o

Ftatd -

RZZ——FNA=1H AARKRENRENESEHEER
PRRE AR A ) (A178 Smart Planner Limited) ([ BB |) 2%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB s 5L A

note e:

China Investment and Finance Group Limited (“CIFG”) was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1226). CIFG is an investment holding company
principally engaged in investing in listed and unlisted companies in Hong Kong
and overseas market. No dividend was received or receivable during the year.

Financial Resources And Liquidity

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$5,961,000 (2011: negative of approximately
HK$286,000). The Group had the net current assets and the net
assets of approximately HK$14,914,000 (2011: HK$16,765,000) and
approximately HK$42,010,000 (2011: net liabilities of HK$6,604,000)
respectively as at 31 March 2012. The Group had no bank and other
borrowing as at 31 March 2012.

The current ratio, calculated on the basis of total current assets over
total current liabilities, was approximately 5.6 (2011: 2.7) at 31 March
2012.

Capital Structure

Details in the changes of the capital structure of the Company during
the year ended 31 March 2012 are set out in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements. The capital of the Company
comprises only ordinary shares as at 31 March 2012,

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Most of the business transactions of the Group are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and Korean Won. Management of the Group will
closely monitor the fluctuation in these currencies and take
appropriate actions when needed. As at 31 March 2012, the Group
does not have any hedging activities its foreign exchange exposure
nor does it adopt any formal hedging policies. The Group had not
entered into any financial derivatives during the year.

Pledge Of Assets And Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 March 2012, there were no charges on the Group’s assets
and the Group did not have any contingent liabilities.

Kiite :

TEKBREESEERAR((TEEREEE])RHASHS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB s 5L A

Staff Cost

The Group’s total staff costs (including directors’ remuneration) for
the year ended 31 March 2012 amounted to approximately
HK$4,243,000 (2011: HK$1,577,000) and it included equity-settled
share-based payments to certain directors and employee in the
amount of approximately HK$1,765,000 (2011: HK$nil) for the year.
The employees were remunerated based on their responsibilities and
performance.

Prospect

In line with our investment policy and strategy, the Company will
continue to seek opportunistic investments in the public and private
equities markets that fit the investment criteria. These investments will
generate more consistent and less volatile returns and also have the
potential to offer positive returns even in times of falling markets.

The Group will also consider fund raising exercise to strengthen the
financial position of the Group when suitable situation arise. With
more financial resources, the Group could expand its investment
opportunities which will have attractive return to the Group’s
operating results in the years to come.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
XTI

Corporate Governance

The Board recognises the importance of corporate governance
practice of a listed company and is committed to adopting the
standards of corporate governance. It is in the interest of the
stakeholders and shareholders for a listed company to operate in a
transparent manner with the adoptions of various self-regulatory
policies, procedures and monitoring mechanisms with a clear
definition of accountability of directors and management.

The Company and the Directors confirm, to the best of their
knowledge, that the Company has complied with the Code of
Corporate Governance practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December
2012, except the deviation disclosed in the following paragraph:

Under the provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company. Currently, all the non-executive directors of the Company
are not appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws. As such, the Board
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the
Company’s corporate governance practices are no less exacting than
those in the CG Code.

Director’s Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the directors. Having made specific enquiry
of all directors, the Company confirmed that all the directors have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
XTI

Board of Directors

Composition

The Board comprises of executive Directors, non-executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors during the year and up to
the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Mark Damon Go (Resigned on 6 April 2011)

Mr. Tang Hin Keung, Alfred (Resigned on 6 April 2011)

Mr. Kwok Ho On, Anthony (Resigned on 6 April 2011)

Mr. Ahn Do |l (Resigned on 6 April 2011)

Mr. Liu Hui (Appointed on 6 April 2011)

Mr. Wong Chak Keung (Appointed on 6 April 2011)

Mr. Zhang Ying Hui (Appointed on 6 April 2011 and
resigned on 15 March 2012)

Mr. Chan Cheong Yee (Appointed on 29 May 2012)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Yibiao (Appointed on 6 April 2011 and
removed on 18 April 2012)
Mr. Deng Li (Appointed as the non-executive

director and Chairman of the
Company on 23 March 2012
and 18 April 2012 respectively)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Li Man Nang Resigned on 6 April 2011)
Mr. Choi Yong Seok Resigned on 6 April 2011)
Mr. Leung Chi Hung Resigned on 11 April 2011)

(
(
(
Mr. Ngan Woon Man, Eddie (Resigned on 11 April 2011)

Mr. Fong Wo, Felix (Appointed on 6 April 2011)

Mr. Ba Shusong (Appointed on 6 April 2011 and
resigned on 11 August 2011)

Mr. Tang Ping Sum (Appointed on 6 April 2011)

Mr. Lung Chee Ming George  (Appointed on 10 November 2011 and
resigned on 1 May 2012)
Mr. Leung Wing Kin (Appointed on 22 June 2012)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
XTI

Board of Directors (continued)

Composition (continued)

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, investment and
strategic decisions and performance. The Investment Manager,
Executive Board, and senior management have been delegated with
the authority and responsibility by the Board for the day-to-day
operations of the Group while reserving certain key matters for the
approval by the Board. In addition, the Board has also delegated
various responsibilities to the Board Committees. Further details of
these Board Committees are set out in this report.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/ relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced board
composition is formed to ensure strong independence exists across
the Board and has met recommended practice under the Code for
the Board to have at least one-third of its members comprising
independent non-executive Directors. The biographical information of
the existing Directors are set out on pages 33 to 36 under the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors of the Company”.

Chairman

The role of the chairman of the Company takes the lead in formulating
overall strategies and policies of the Group; ensures the effective
performance by the Board of its functions, including compliance with
good corporate governance practices and encourages and facilitates
active contribution of directors in Board activities. The Chairman also
ensures that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at
Board meetings and have received adequate, complete and reliable
information in a timely manner with the assistance of the company
secretary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
XTI

Board of Directors (continued)

Executive Directors

The executive Directors are responsible for running the Group and
executing the strategies adopted by the Board. They lead the Group’s
management team in accordance with the directions set by the Board
and are responsible for ensuring that proper internal control system is
in place and the Group’s business conforms to applicable laws and
regulations.

Non-executive Directors and Independent non-executive
Directors

The non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors serve the important function of ensuring and monitoring the
basis for an effective corporate governance framework. Their
participations provide adequate checks and balances to safeguard
the interests of the Group and its shareholders. The Board consists of
three independent non-executive Directors and each of them has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. All independent non-executive
Directors are financially independent from the Company. The
Company confirmed with all independent non-executive Directors as
to their independence with reference to the factors as set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
XTI

Board of Directors (continued) BEEg (&)

Board Meetings EEEEE

During the financial year ended 31 March 2012, the Board held 28  E_TE-—_F=A=T—BILWRFE EFg
regular/ special Board meetings. The attendance of each member at B R{728 X E#H HHlEEees - SKERES
the Board meetings is set out below: eERILREELRINAT

Number of meetings

attended/Total
HES®RRE
BITERHEH
Executive Directors: BITES:
Mr. Mark Damon Go Mark Damon Go %t 4 11
Mr. Tang Hin Keung, Alfred BOToR A& 0/1
Mr. Kwok Ho On, Anthony Al LA E 1/1
Mr. Ahn Do |l IR 0N
Mr. Liu Hui gkt 26/27
Mr. Zhang Ying Hui oRFEE S A 3/24
Mr. Wong Chak Keung =R LA 27/27
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee PREZE LA N/A i
Non-executive Directors: FHITES :
Mr. Chen Yibiao BREEZ T AE 7/27
Mr. Deng Li Bkt 2/2
Independent non-executive Directors: BYEHITES :
Mr. Li Man Nang FERETA 11
Mr. Choi Yong Seok EREEAE 0/1
Mr. Leung Chi Hung REHETE 1/2
Mr. Ngan Woon Man, Eddie B & 1/2
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix IR 2/27
Mr. Tang Ping Sum BIRAREE 4/27
Mr. Ba Shusong BN E 0/9
Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George BEFRASLAE 0/11
Mr. Leung Wing Kin RS E N/A T~ A

Board minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for ZEEzee@Z R ATWERT  WHESER -
inspection by the Directors. Every Board member is entitled to have &&xepeh8iEclEsexHREEER &
access to Board papers and related materials and has unrestricted  FEASZERIE S| T EBATWEL 2K E B RRE -
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, and AR AEZERFZKINAEEEZ R

has the liberty to seek external professional advice if so required.

CHINA INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT LIMITED HE R & Z AR T
26



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
XTI

Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance, with
coverage being reviewed annually, to indemnify the directors from
their risk exposure arising from corporate activities.

Supply of and Access to Information

In respect of regular board meetings, an agenda and accompanying
board papers of the meeting are sent in full to all directors in advance
before the intended date of a meeting.

The management has the obligation to supply the Board and the
various Committees with adequate information in a timely manner to
enable the members to make informed decisions. Each director has
separate and independent access to the Group’s senior management
to acquire more information than is volunteered by management and
to make further enquiries if necessary.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established by the Board. The Audit
Committee comprises all the independent non-executive Directors
during the year. The Audit Committee will meet at least twice a year.
The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting system and internal control procedures;
making recommendations to the Board in the appointment and
removal of the external auditors and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditors; and any questions of
resignation or dismissal of such auditors; and reviewing the interim
and annual reports and the financial statements of the Group. The full
terms of reference are available on the Company’s website:
www.cidl.com.hk.

RE2
ARFEREFLHEERERR  UBFRIR
REE - MRERERA QR EB AT 2 @R -

RERERER
HREHEESSANE  SRARENEREZESEX
HReERAEAMIIEAE2T2RES -

EREREARNEFELEZEG A KRHETRE
B UEESKEELAIERE - SEEFER RBL
WEBAEESREERE  URGSEBEIHREM
AN Z B YR BHREBRIEE—EHR -

BEREEE

EFGOAUEZEEE BERZEERNAFENRN
HEREBEVERTEREN BERZETHEFR
DBITRAEH - EREECFTZATEELRRT
ZHBRRESERANTELERF  REERELI
IIZEAMEEFRMER  HEINEZBE 2 %
B I ZHB RSN Kot B IR BAD 2 BHE S R IR IR
R REHAEETE  FERERMBEHRE B
T E 2 XA A A B A8 bwww.cidl.com.hk A & -
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Audit Committee (continued)
During the year, the Audit Committee held two meetings. Details of
attendance are set out below:

EREBg (&)
FR - EREEGERITRRGH - HEFEERIIW
™

Number of meetings

attended/Total
HESBRE
BIEREH
Independent non-executive Directors: BIFHITES:
Mr. Tang Ping Sum (Chairman) BIRREE(FE) 2/2
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix F R 2/2
Mr. Ba Shusong (resigned on 11 August 2011)  BEEMRE A (R-_T——FN\A+—HBHD) 0N
Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George BEFRREAE 0/1
(appointed on 10 November 2011 and (RZE—F+—HATHEZER
resigned on 1 May 2012) RZZE—ZFHA—HFT)
Mr. Leung Wing Kin RERIEE N/A
(appointed on 22 June 2012) (RZE—=F A +THEZMF) T EA

Remuneration Committee

The Company established a Remuneration Committee on 20
February 2006 which consists of three independent non-executive
Directors during the year.

The remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy for Directors, senior management, and investment manager
and overseeing the remuneration packages of the executive Directors,
senior management, and investment manager. The full terms of
reference are available on the Company’s website: www.cidl.com.hk.

FHWZEES
ARAR-EEAF-A-+HERIFHEESR -
RARFENE =2 BN TEEEK -

YNZESXZEERARAES aiEEER
BRAGBE2HHBRNESSREER  TEER
TEE SREEERRELE ZFMEE - BES
B2 AR A A48 vk www.cidl.com.hk A] {25 7
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Remuneration Committee (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Remuneration Committee
held one meeting. The attendance of each member is set out as
follows:

yMEESE (&)
BE_ZT-——F=-A=1+—HLFE ¥HFHZE=

ERT—REgH% - SNEHFEEREHIIWT

Number of meetings

attended/Total

HEEERE

BTERAY

Mr. Fong Wo, Felix F RS E 11

Mr. Tang Ping Sum BRAR A& 11

Mr. Ba Shusong (resigned on 11 August 2011)  BEEMRE A (R-_T——FN\A+—BHD) N/A 7~

Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George BEFRREA 0/1
(appointed on 10 November 2011 and (RZE—F+—HATHEZER

resigned on 1 May 2012) R-ZE——FFHA—HEHT)
Mr. Leung Wing Kin R EE N/A 73

(appointed on 22 June 2012)

The Remuneration Committee has considered and approved the
Group’s policy for the remuneration of directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee has assessed the
performance of the executive directors and considered the
remuneration package of executive directors by reference to the
prevailing packages with companies listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Details of the directors’ remuneration are disclosed
on an individual basis in note 16 to the financial statements. The
Group adopts a competitive remuneration package for its employees.
Promotion and salary increments are assessed based on a
performance related basis.

(RZB——FXAZ+-HEZHF)

VFNZ B G ERLERAREEERAREEE
R - TR RSO HAATEST KRR - UK
DEBLXMIRET AR ZEITEE  AEEBNT
EE2HMEE -  SESRENEEZHFMFER
MBERRMFE16HE - AEEREEERMNARTF
NZEHMFE - AR INFARBERRRERLETT
BEEE
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises of five directors including Mr.
Fong Wo, Felix, Mr. Tang Ping Sum and Mr. Leung Wing Kin, all of
them are independent non-executive directors, Mr. Deng Li, a non-
executive director and Mr. Wong Chak Keung, an executive director.
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The primary function of the Nomination Committee is to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Group’s corporate strategy. The full terms of
reference are available on the Company’s website: www.cidl.com.hk.

It is a newly formed committee with effect from 23 March 2012 and
no meeting has been held during the year ended 31 March 2012.

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial
Statements

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for each financial period and to
ensure that the consolidated financial statements are in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The Board also ensures the timely publication of the consolidated
financial statements. The Directors, having made appropriate
enquiries, confirm that they are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statements of the auditors of the Group regarding their
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 37 to 39 of this annual
report.

REZES
REZEBEHNREFTEN  BRBEIMIIFNTES
KL - BRREERRRBELE  FRTESH
NFEEARMTERTEZRAL - HTMEEREA
ZEgLXFE-

REZESIZREARTFRITESSHE  AK
KRB - WiIRBAEECERERESSRLEM
EENE BEEE22 XN AQA A
www.cidl.com.hk A] & ]

SE-E-—F At =ZREHKIL
ZEB8g MRBE_ZT-—_—F=A=+—HItHF
B EBITEMEE -

ESERMBHRR2EE

EXeRREFRIREARESMBHRAZES
MHHmE UHRREEVBERRTAZEEZRRA

BEHER - BERTRIRGA U HBFERHHE -
EFENELEEENERR  BELTOBAFT

EEHARERBCLERNERBEARBE ZEMFX
BRZERTEEHAE -

ERAEEZEMESEANBRRZETERERN
AFREI7TE39A 2B ZEEMRES
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Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining sound and
effective internal control system of the Group. The Board has
delegated to the management the implementation of such systems of
internal controls as well as the review of relevant financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management procedures. The
Audit Committee composites member of the management was
established for conducting a review of the internal control of the
Group which cover the material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions.
Procedures have been set up, inter alia, for safeguarding assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, controlling over capital
expenditure, maintaining proper accounting records and ensuring the
reliability of financial information used for business and publication.
The management throughout the Group maintains and monitors the
internal control system on an ongoing basis.

Auditors’ Remuneration
During the year, the remuneration in respect of audit provided by the
Company’s auditors, HLM & Co. is set out below:

Services rendered

PR 2 AR 3%

ThESE

EEEREARASERT BB A EZEZRS o
EEQLZREEEERABAPELERS  UE
ARG  LERARERAREARERIEF - 4
EEENBEKCERZZESERY  UEHARE
BRENY ZERAHREEUALREREERES
BHEEBAERTEZASEE - BEFIFIREF (EF 8
BINREEERBREEEEATIEE « EHEX
S EFBREST A RERBIEES LT3
ERBZMGERAE AEBEEERE—EHFR

ERNAREIE AR

o
1—\-?

BB &
RAFE » AREZBENERETETHIRHE
PRS2 ZEE T

Fee paid/payable
B ENEA

HK$'000
T

Annual audit services FEETRE 220
Other assurance services HMIRE R 100
320

Investor Relations

During the year, the Group has proactively enhanced its corporate
transparency and communications with its shareholders and the
investment community through its mandatory interim and final reports
announcement. Through the timely distribution of press releases, the
Group has also kept the public abreast of its latest developments.

REEBE

MAFE  AEBFEERHIMEFT RS LR HRE
N TERRIR T (5 E AR R A KB 0 R A AR I
REFAR - BBRERTIENER  ARETCER
RERERHER
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Communication With Shareholders

The annual general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders
to exchange views with the Board. The chairman as well as Chairman
of the Audit and Remuneration Committees and members of the
Committees are pleased to answer shareholders’ questions. Separate
resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each substantially
separate issue, including the election of individual directors. Details of
poll voting procedures and the rights of shareholders to demand a
poll are included in the circular to shareholders dispatched together
with the annual report. The circular also includes relevant details of
proposed resolutions, including biographies of each candidates
standing for re-election. The results of the poll are published in the
newspapers, on the Company’s website (http://www.cidl.com.hk),
and on the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
(http://www.hkex.com.hk).

Amendments to the Bye-Laws

During the financial year, the Company has made certain
amendments to the Bye-Laws in order to bring the Bye-Laws up-to-
date and in line with the requirements under the Listing Rules. The
amended and restated Bye-Laws was approved and adopted by the
Shareholders of the Company at the annual general meeting held on
3 January 2012.

The updated Bye-Laws are published on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange respectively. Details of the
amendments to the Bye-Laws were contained in the circular to the
Shareholders of the Company dated 8 December 2011.

BERRRA
BRBFAGRBRBESEINE
e ERURERRFHEZEGERURKSER

BAERER)HUBTRBRRCRRASRE - &
RRREFIERERIEERAERN 2 55
RER—HE TR ZBEHA o 238 K INE TR
ERERZEWBFE PHEEEEXTZBZEEARE
B RERAERTERRE A2 FHEU
(http://www.cidl.com.hk) & & &8t & 22 5 T E R A A
Z #8uh (http://www.hkex.com.hk) °

CHNGEE]

RAMBEEHE - RMEARMANEBRIER X
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AZRBFTZRRBFANE LEADBREAER
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Directors of the Company
The Board comprises the following persons:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Hui

Mr. Liu Hui, aged 34, was appointed as an executive Director and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company in April 2011. Mr. Liu is the
vice chairman and general manager of Zhongdan Investment & Credit
Guarantee Co., Ltd. (“Zhongdan”), a company established under the
laws of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), the principal activity
of which is the provision of the financing services, in particular, credit
guarantee services to small and medium enterprises in Beijing. Mr.
Liu joined Zhongdan in 2003 as the general manger of the marketing
department. Currently, he is also the deputy chairman of Beijing
Credit and Guarantee Association (1t =T {5 BIERE W €), a non-
profit association governed by the government of Beijing for the
purpose of facilitating financing for small and medium enterprises. Mr.
Liu is also the Chairman of Beijing Kailong Venture Capital Fund
Management Co., Ltd. (Jt RSl AIE R EE S BEEEBRAF) a
fund management company in the PRC. Prior to his joining of
Zhongdan, Mr. Liu was the general manger of Beijing Gosun
Communication Equipment Co., Ltd. (It REBEE=M AR EETA
A]). Apart from his qualification as an approved senior staff of a fund
management company, Mr. Liu is experience in direct investments
and debts financing services in the PRC.

Mr. Wong Chak Keung

Mr. Wong Chak Keung, aged 45, was appointed as an executive
Director and company secretary of the Company in April 2011 and
June 2011 respectively. Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor’s Degree in
Business from The University of Southern Queensland in Australia.
Mr. Wong is also a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and CPA Australia respectively. Mr. Wong has
been in the accounting profession for over 15 years. Before joining
the Company, Mr. Wong also held various positions in an international
accounting firm and in the corporate finance, educational business
and manufacturing sectors in Hong Kong. Mr. Wong is currently an
independent non-executive director of China Seven Star Shopping
Limited (stock code: 245) and also an independent non-executive
director of Bingo Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8220) which
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and the Growth Enterprise Market of
the Stock Exchange (the “GEM”) respectively. Mr. Wong was an
executive director of China Innovation Investment Limited (stock
code: 1217) during the period from 12 November 2007 to 19 June
2011 and an executive director of China Trends Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8171) during the period from 25 February 2008 to 19
June 2011 and the two companies are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange and the GEM respectively.
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Mr. Chan Cheong Yee

Mr. Chan Cheong Yee, aged 48, was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company in May 2012. He is one of the responsible
officers of China Everbright Securities (HK) Limited and is currently a
licensed person to carry out type 1 (dealing in securities), type 2
(dealing in futures contracts), type 3 (leveraged foreign exchange
trading) and type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the
SFO. Mr. Chan obtained a Bachelor of Science degree from the
College of Business Administration of The University of South Florida
in the United States of America. Mr. Chan is experienced in dealing in
securities, fund management, corporate management, corporate
finance and managing listed investment companies under Chapter 21
of the Listing Rules.

Since June 2003, Mr. Chan joined China Innovation Investment
Limited (“China Innovation” and stock code: 1217), an investment
company listed on the Stock Exchange, as executive director. Mr.
Chan was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
Bingo Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8220), a company listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange, in August
2007, and was re-designated as an executive director of Bingo Group
Holdings Limited in April 2009. Mr. Chan was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Agritrade Resources Limited
(stock code: 1131), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, in June
2010. Mr. Chan was also appointed as an executive director of China
Investment and Finance Group Limited (“CIFG” and stock code:
1226), an investment company listed on the Stock Exchange, in
March 2011.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Deng Li

Mr. Deng Li, aged 51, was appointed as a non-executive Director and
chairman of the Company in March 2012 and April 2012 respectively.
Mr. Deng graduated from Renmin University of China with post-
secondary qualification, majoring in Chinese, in 1985. Mr. Deng is the
founder, legal representative and the chairman of 1t = 2% & B+
Lt 5 B BR & 1T A Al (transliterated as Bejing Sheng Yue Metallic
Materials Company Limited), a limited liability company established
under the laws of the PRC, which is principally engaged in sales and
distribution of metallic construction materials. Mr. Deng is also a
director of Jade Bright Limited, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, with effect from 10 February 2012. Mr. Deng has over 20
years’ extensive experience in investment and management, and
keen industry insight.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Fong Wo, Felix

Mr. Fong Wo, Felix , BBS, JP, aged 61, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company in April 2011.
Mr. Fong was the founding partner of Arculli Fong & Ng (now
renamed as King & Wood Mallesons) and is a consultant of King &
Wood Mallesons. Mr. Fong received his engineering degree in
Canada in 1974 and his Juris Doctor degree from Osgoode Hall Law
School in Toronto in 1978.

Mr. Fong is a member of the law societies of Hong Kong and
England, and had been honorary legal counsels of a number of non-
profit organisations in Hong Kong such as The Chinese
Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong.

Mr. Fong is currently one of the China-appointed Attesting Officers in
Hong Kong appointed by the Ministry of Justice of China. Mr. Fong
undertook a number of community and social roles, such as the
former Chairman of the Chinese Canadian Association of Hong Kong,
the Chairman of the Advisory Council on Food and Environmental
Hygiene and a member of the Hong Kong Film Development Council.
He is also a director of the Hong Kong Basic Law Institute Limited, a
member of Guangdong Provincial Committee of Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference and a director of China Overseas
Friendship Association. In the area of education, Mr. Fong is a
founding member and the first director of the Canadian International
School of Hong Kong, and an advisor to the Faculty of Business of
University of Victoria in Canada.

Currently, Mr. Fong is an independent non-executive director of a
number of listed companies, namely Kingway Brewery Holdings
Limited, SPG Land (Holdings) Limited and Evergeen International
Holdings Limited, whose stocks are listed on the Stock Exchange,
and also China Qilfield Services Limited, whose shares are listed on
the Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

Mr. Fong is a Justice of Peace and was awarded a Bronze Bauhinia
Star by the Government of Hong Kong in recognition of his public
service.
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Mr. Tang Ping Sum

Mr. Tang Ping Sum, aged 55, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company in April 2011. Mr. Tang graduated
from The University of Western Australia in Australia with a bachelor
of commerce degree in 1982 and The Macquarie University, New
South Wales in Australia with a master of applied finance degree in
1992. He had been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants until 2007 and is a member of the CPA Australia.
He has over 20 years’ experience in investment consultancy and
financial and asset management businesses. Mr. Tang is currently a
director of Grand Partners Asset Management Limited. He served as
a manager in the licensing department of the Securities and Futures
Commission and held senior positions at Tanrich Financial Group
Limited, Hantec Investment Holdings Limited, Taifook Securities
Group Limited and Wing Fung Financial Group Limited. Mr. Tang was
an independent non-executive director of Sino Resources Group
Limited (stock code: 0223), the securities of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange from 30 April 2009 to 31 December 2010 and a
non-executive director of Univision Engineering Limited (AIM code:
UVEL), the securities of which are listed on London Stock Exchange
from December 2005 to December 2011. At present, he is an
independent non-executive director in China Mandarin Holdings
Limited (stock code: 0009), the securities of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange.

Mr. Leung Wing Kin

Mr. Leung Wing Kin, aged 55, has over 20 years of management
experience in the leisure and tourism business. He is the vice chief of
the PREKEREHESH R ITREEZ B (transliterated as Audit
Committee of Project Ganquan of the Chinese Association of Poverty
Alleviation and Development) managed by The State Council Leading
Group Office of Poverty Alleviation and Development. During the
period from 7 December 2007 to 24 August 2009, Mr. Leung was an
independent non-executive director of China Trends Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8171), the securities of which are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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e
HLM & Co.

Certified Public Accountants

Room 305, Arion Commercial Centre

2-12 Queen’s Road West, Hong Kong
Fuls 5L KA TG 2- 12 SR E R 2 R0 305
Tel &G : (852) 3103 6980

Fax 1 : (852) 3104 0170

E-mail B : hlm@hlm.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA INVESTMENT
DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

FORMERLY KNOWN AS “TEMUJIN INTERNATIONAL
INVESTMENTS LIMITED”

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda with
limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Investment Development Limited, formerly known as “Temujin
International Investments Limited” (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
40 to 119, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2012, the consolidated income statement,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
for such internal controls as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

BHEREMBRERAT
(FIBRBERREARLT) KRR

(RAESHETMEA IR BEREEFZHERAA)

EEFEERTERERBEARAR (FIEBRRK
BBRERAE) (ERRDREMBAR(SEIEE
BDEINFAOEN9ORZEAMBEHRE - EFH
BERIZE——H=A=+-HZHEAWBKAX
HEZRLFEZHFARER HKatmlak &
ERGEEHRLGERASRER  URTBEHK
R E MM I AR RE

EERGAMBRRAREZRE

BERREFAREREESHMAGHERZEE
BBREEARBERRMGII ZHERTE  HRE
BEEEQAFHEIZEGEUBRE LERES
RRVEZ NEREE - AHEREHRES VB RRYL
BEEEAERBR(THESERFFRERGIE)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
8 VA i S

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with agreed terms of
engagement and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2012 and
of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLM & Co.
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 June 2012
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
L E S

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE_Z——_F=R=+—HItFE

ok 2011
—E-——F 2%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBxT FHIT
Continuing operations FESEER
Revenue A 7 748 —
Other income HAb A 1,209 -
Net unrealised loss on financial assets HIEEBEVKEEZ
held for trading SR (250) -
Gain on redemption of convertible bonds & [E AJ# AXE %5 2 Wz 5,393 —
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RKMEB ARz W 33 1 —
Administrative expenses THRAX (14,240) (8,914)
Finance costs BE R AN 9 (148) (7,259)
Share of results of an associate DME—REE AT 2 EE 19 (6) —
Loss before taxation KRB ATEE (7,293) (16,173)
Taxation BiE 10 = _
Loss for the year from continuing operations # & 4% & 7%~ N [£ 518 11 (7,293) (16,173)
Discontinued operations DRIEEE XK
Profit for the year from discontinued BRI EEB 2
operations AN R 13 1,031 2,890
Loss for the year attributable to RATIEB AEIEARFEEE
the owners of the Company (6,262) (13,283)
Loss per share BRER 15
From continuing and discontinued RARFELER
operations BRI ETE
— Basic (HK cents per share) — EAR (BB (1.01) (44.56)
— Diluted (HK cents per share) — #58 (FB) (1.01) (44.56)
From continuing operations REFELEED
— Basic (HK cents per share) — BEAXR(BREW) (1.17) (54.25)
— Diluted (HK cents per share) — 5% (ZRB) (1.17) (54.25)

Details of the dividend are disclosed in note 12 to the financial

statements.

I SR BR M B MR 12 HE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A 47 2 B A R

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE_Z——_F=R=+—HItFE

2012 2011
—E-——F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T
Loss for the year attributable to KNEVER AEL AT ERE
the owners of the Company (6,262) (13,283)
Other comprehensive income (expense): Empmiiss (F) :
Change in fair value of available-for-sale AHEVBEE A FEES
financial assets (315) (420)
Exchange differences on translation of BEGINEFS B TSR R
financial statements of foreign operations ZEHER 334 990
Other comprehensive income for the year, AREEHMEEmINE
net of tax Mk T 19 570
Total comprehensive expense for the year KARGEAEBERFEELEMAL A%
attributable to the owners of the Company (6,243) (12,713)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

i IR DL R

At 31 March 2012
RZE——F=A=+—H

2012 2011
=F—=-F —F—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE&xT T
Non-current assets FkRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - B REE 17 2,837 393
Available-for-sale financial assets T HEMBEE 18 18,185 6,767
Interests in an associate R—RKEE AR 2 s 19 6,074 —
27,096 7,160
Current assets REEE
Financial assets held for trading BIEEEUKEE 20 614 —
Loans receivable EWE R 21 = 25,614
Other receivables, deposits and EmEREIE - e MIBNFIE
prepayments 22 3,317 1,159
Amount due from a shareholder U — 2R FIA 23 3,884 —
Bank and cash balances RITRIRSETF 24 5,054 23
13,769 26,796
Assets classified as held for sale DEABIEHEZEE 14 4,377 —
18,146 26,796
Current liabilities REBAE
Bank overdraft RITHEX 24 = 309
Other payables and accrued charges HAb R A MR E 1,224 5,522
Amount due to a shareholder e — AR IR 25 - 4,200
1,224 10,031
Liabilities directly associated with assets B8 A EHE 2
classified as held for sale EEEEFEBACEE 14 2,008 —
3,232 10,031
Net current assets RBEEFE 14,914 16,765
Non-current liability kRBERE
Convertible bonds AR ES 26 - 30,529
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(AB)3E 42,010 (6,604)

CHINA INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT LIMITED HE R & Z AR T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
LR EIRNES

At 31 March 2012
RZE——F=A=+—H

ok 2011
—E-_—F —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET

Capital and reserves EXREHE
Share capital A% A 27 6,303 6,050
Reserves ] 28 35,707 (12,654)
Total equity/(capital deficiency) AR (AR 42,010 (6,604)
Net asset/(liability) value per share #REE (88)FE 31 HK$0.07 &t (HK$0.22 7% 7T)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 40 to 119 were F40E 9B 7 KA KA EEETeN - F

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26—~ XA -+ NBHERBENREL A M IES
June 2012 and are signed on its behalf by: REZEE -
Wong Chak Keung Chan Cheong Yee
BER FRE=
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
BF EF

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 F#
43



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Fos 1 B 2t 58 ) %

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE-Z——F=-A=-+—HIEFE

Convertible
Investment bonds  Share
Share  Share revaluation Warrant equity option Exchange Accumulated
capital premium reserve  reserve reserve reserve  reserve losses Total

Rt REEE RARRE TARE: ERR
Bx &R e R BERG 2 BE EXRE  RHER A
HK§'000 HK§'000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000 HKS000  HK000  HKEO000 HKS000
BT TER Thn  TEn thn TEr  TAx T TER

At 1 Apr 2010 W-Z-ZEMFE-F 5050 83,205 5 B YY) 13,370 - 3725 (1085200 217

Other comprehensive EeEis/ (Fx)
income/(expense) - - (420) - - - 990 - 570
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - - - (13,283)  (13,289)

Total comprehensive TEERHRY A8

expense for the year - - (420) - - - 990 (13,283)  (12,713)
Conversion of HBETRRES
convertible bonds 1,000 7,566 - - (2,674) - - - 5,892

At 31 March 2011 and RZZ——4F
1 April 2011 =R=+-Bk
“Z——Z#NA-H 6,050 90,771 (875) 842 10,696 - 4,715 (118,803)  (6,604)

Other comprehensive Eh2EkE/ (A%)
income/(expense) - - (315) - - - 334 - 19
Loss for the year AEEFE - - - - - - - (6,262) (6,262)

Total comprehensive FEE2AERSAE

expense for the year - - (315) - - - 334 (6,262)  (6,243)
Capital reorganisation RAER (5,747) (90,771) - - - - - 96,518 -
Redemption of BEETARES

convertible bonds - - - - (10,696) - - - (10,696)
Issue of shares Bkl 6,000 54,000 - - - - - - 60,000
Share issue expenses RABTEY - (52) - - - - - - (52)
Eliminated upon disposal 1 & B i - - 875 - - - - - 875
Reversal of BEFETRARES

unlisted warrants - - - (842) - - - 842 -
Recognition of BRERER

equity-settled R

share-based payments - - - - 4,730 - - 4,730

At 31 March 2012 RNZB-ZF
ZA=+-H 6,303 53,948 (315) -

4,730 5,049 (27,705) 42,010
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
LR R e

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE_Z——_F=R=+—HItFE

2012 2011
—E—C—F —T——
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B & FHx FAIT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES e
Loss before taxation BB AT EE (6,262) (13,283)
Adjustments for: LTI EBEELFAE -
Share of results of an associate PME—FRBERB 2 ER 19 6 —
Interest income FEWA (2,786) (3,480)
Interest expense on convertible AR EHF BRI
bonds 85 3,916
Imputed interest on convertible AR EFHEERN S
bonds 63 3,343
Equity-settled share-based payments BEREEURNNR 4,730 —
Depreciation N 837 294
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEVE BER
and equipment B2 E51E 63 489
Unrealised loss on financial assets BIEESVBEEY
held for trading AREBEE 250 -
Gain on redemption of convertible B [ AR E 5 2 W e
bonds (5,393) -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMBAR 2 KE 33 (1) -
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEM N EMBEE W
financial assets (1,008) -
Written off of accruals WisrEET &R 200 —
Operating cash flow before movement EEESEHE 2
in working capital KERESRE (9,216) (8,721)
Purchase of financial assets held for HBERIFEEUKAE
trading (864) —
Decrease in loans receivable FEWE TR 25,614 -
(Increase) decrease in other HAbEUGRIA - ke &k
receivables, deposits and TR FRIE (3 00) R A
prepayments (2,912) 407
Increase in amount due from a shareholder [ U — 4 B% 5 3R T8 12 A0 (3,884) -
(Decrease) increase in other payables Hth e 708 K EsT & A
and accrued charges (B 1 n (2,127) 3,068
(Decrease) increase in amount due to FET — R AR I8 CRiA) 10
a shareholder (4,200) 4,200
Cash generated from (used in) KEME () Re
operations 2,411 (1,046)
Interest received A E 2,423 -
Interest paid EfFIE (3,980) —

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 F#
45



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
LR R e

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE_Z——_F=R=+—HItFE

2012 2011
—E——F =%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
NET CASH GENERATED FROM EEERE () REFHE
(USED IN) OPERATING
ACTIVITIES 854 (1,0486)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXE
Net cash inflow from disposal of a HE—XRMBAFZ
subsidiary WERNFEE 33 2,105 —
Purchases of available-for-sale BEHEVHEE
financial assets (18,500) -
Proceeds from disposal of HEAHEMKEEZ
available-for-sale financial assets FR1S 3R 3,000 -
Payments for investment in an associate H—REEARIRE 2K (6,080) -
Purchases of property, plant and BEME  BELEE
equipment (3,540) 87)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REEBERS TR
ACTIVITIES (23,015) (87)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEES
Repayment of convertible bonds EEBRRES (32,000) -
Net proceeds from issue of new shares BTN 2 555 59,948 —
NET CASH GENERATED FROM RMETBRBREFEHE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 27,948 —
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) RERESEEYEMCRD) B8
IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 5,787 (1,133)
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE ERgEH s LE
RATE CHANGES 460 (21)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FNRESRESEEY
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR (286) 868
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRRERRESEEY
AT END OF YEAR 5,961 (286)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
LR R e

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE_Z——_F=R=+—HItFE

2012 2011
—E——fF —F——%
HK$’000 HK$’'000
Fi#5 Fis
Analysis of the balance of cash and BekReEEY
cash equivalents: BEIF AT
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE & 5,954 23
Bank overdrafts RITEX = (309)
24 5,954 (286)
Bank and cash balances included in STAEDEABELEZ
a disposal group classified as held HEHRRZRITR
for sale R 14 7 —
5,961 (286)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 k¢ M ik

Year ended 31 March 2012

He—ZT——HF#=-F=+—HItFE

General

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 25 March 1998 and
was de-registered on 11 March 2011 and was registered by
way of continuation as an exempted company in Bermuda on 2
March 2011. The Company’s shares have been listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
with effect from 12 December 2000. Its registered office is
located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda and its principal office in Hong Kong is located at
Units 7809-13, 78/F, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central,
Central, Hong Kong.

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding for
medium to long-term capital appreciation purposes, and
investment in listed and unlisted securities. The principal
activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 36
to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group had applied the following new

and revised Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”),

amendments and interpretation (“Int”) (hereinafter collectively

referred to as “new and revised HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong

Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2010

HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009) Related Party Disclosures

HK (IFRIC)-Int 14
(Amendments)

Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement

HK (IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments

1.

—REE
AARBR—NMNANF=ZA=Z+HBRHASE
Sk Iz EREBRAR  ER T ——
F=A+—AEEER - TR =T ——F=F
ZEURBREEF A AMARER 2R
Al e RRRRMHAZZEEZETF+_A+-HE
ERBHERXSMERAR([BAM]) £ -
A7) 2z FE % S BR 252 Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda -+ i1 &
BRRPRERMNEBFRIRZE AEF 95 H
IRAN781E7809-13 F o

ARRIZEBXRGHHARENEGTHER
HIBEAIEE  ARKRE EMRIFETES - &
REIMB AR EEXBH NG M BRKRM
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 k¢ B ik

Year ended 31 March 2012
HE-_Z——F=-A=1+—HILFE

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

The application of new and revised HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material effect on the amounts reported in these
consolidated financial statements and/or disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective.

Amendments to HKFRSs
HKFRS 1 (Amendments)

Annual Improvement to HKFRSs
2009-2011 Cycle*

Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of
Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters'

HKFRS 1 (Amendments) Government Loans*

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Transfers of Financial
Assets'

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Offsetting Financial

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Assets and Financial Liabilities*
Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9

and HKFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures®
HKFRS 9 (Revised) Financial Instruments®
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements*
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements*
HKFRS 12 Disclosures of Interests in Other
Entities*
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement*

HKAS 1 (Amendments)
HKAS 12 (Amendments)
HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)
HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)
HKAS 32 (Amendments)

HK (IFRIC)-Int 20

Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income®

Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying
Assets?

Employee Benefits*

Separate Financial Statements*

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures*

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011
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2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 k¢ M ik

Year ended 31 March 2012
HE-_Z——F=-A=1+—HILFE

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 7 “Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets”

The amendments to HKFRS 7 increase the disclosure
requirements for transactions involving transfers of financial
assets. These amendments are intended to provide greater
transparency around risk exposures when a financial asset is
transferred but the transferor retains some level of continuing
exposure in the asset. The amendments also require
disclosures where transfers of financial assets are not evenly
distributed throughout the period.

The directors anticipate that the application of the amendments
to HKFRS 7 will affect the Group’s disclosures regarding
transfers of financial assets in the future.

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as issued in November 2009)
introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (as revised in December 2010) adds requirements
for financial liabilities and for derecognition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 9 M i
BEIF CE=AZi-RLER

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong 2. ERHIIREETEBHBREXEL

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) ([EBMBEHREED D

(continued) (%)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet EEMEERERZHFTREBITEE
effective (continued) MR EER (&)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (continued) BB EHREERFEIN [MBETAIE)
Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows: BAMBMELFEOR 2 EEREFMAT ¢

HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at
the end of subsequent reporting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their
fair values at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the
fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

The most significant effect of HKFRS 9 regarding the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities
relates to the presentation of changes in the fair value of a
financial liability (designated as at fair value through profit
or loss) attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability. Specifically, under HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities
that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
the amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial
liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss. Previously, under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as at fair value through profit or loss
was presented in profit or loss.
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Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (continued)

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2015, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the
future may have significant impact on the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities should the Group has such
relevant items in the future.

HKFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements.
The standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to
both financial instrument items and non-financial instrument
items for which other HKFRSs require or permit fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements,
except in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those in the
current standards. For example, quantitative and qualitative
disclosures based on the three-level fair value hierarchy
currently required for financial instruments only under HKFRS 7
Financial Instruments: Disclosures will be extended by HKFRS
13 to cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 13 will be adopted in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning on or after 1 April 2013 and that the application of
the new Standard may affect the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements and result in more extensive
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
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Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

HKAS 1 (Amendments) “Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income”

The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in either a single
statement or in two separate but consecutive statements.
However, the amendments to HKAS 1 require additional
disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive income
section such that items of other comprehensive income are
grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items that
may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific
conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same
basis.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The presentation of items of
other comprehensive income will be modified accordingly when
the amendments are applied in the future accounting periods.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
other new or revised standards, amendments and
interpretations will have no material impact on results and
financial position of the Group.

Principal Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
which are measured at fair values, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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3. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

(@)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 March each year. Control is achieved
where the Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposal of during
the year are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commenced or up
to the date that control ceased. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group. All significant
intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investment in subsidiaries is stated at cost less provision
for impairment losses.

Investment in subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the
Company, where the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of such company so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

3.

FREFHEE)

(@)

ma
REMBHRREBE AR RENMNERF
BEREZA=T—RZHBRE
EARRIAREEERBZMBEREER
RABEEB RSN B BUSES
1 o

oo

Bl

RAFERBILEZMBRAREED
AR R B IR A = AR LR
BHLRt AR MBREA - WERE -
HHBARPERRIEL AR ASR
FEZ B HRTEREEEMKE QA
FERAE - REARRAMZABEERR
5 & WARRAXREGAKRERY

EARRRFBHARREKRA - LI E R R
BIRKAMEINR R EE R BRI -

HMBARRE
MERRAXKEAMEHZEE AQ
AIAREE R AR BREERE - LA
SEES LY SN

Y- R ADRE
FERNTIRAEBHHEBEARE N
B MUFMBARIREELEE
EiEm  EAFEBNIEERSMERER
BRI R BRI o
HEHEHIZEBUR ©

I

CHINA INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT LIMITED HE R & Z AR T

54



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
U 5 0 o MR ik

Year ended 31 March 2012
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3. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

(©

Investment in an associate (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting, except when the
investments is classified as held for sale, in which case it
is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
Under the equity method, investment in an associate is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate. When the
Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds the
Group’s interest in that associate (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinue recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of an associate
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

3. FESBE(#E)

(c)

H-RBEENTRE(E)
BENRCERAREERBEDKA
EHGHAFABREVBRERA -
BRADHERPBIELE - RIGRIEEEM
BREENESRIFENEZHFTBE
ERORIPASE BRI - IRIEHERE -
HWH L N RIREV LUK K ERGEA Y
AR R ATER - Hi& T AT AR
NG [ B N B FE AL s R Sk 18 R
fib 2 T IR SS o 14 2N 55 (B PR A Bl 2 2 B /S
BHEEAEERBERNR 2= (BEE
B BRI B A IR A F RS
DA RBARER) - BIREBEKI#E—
PHRABEER - EREEELETEX
HEETIREZBEQARNARE - 7
R RBR 2 ZEINEIE o

WA RN EBERYIEE ARG
ERRCHAAMAEE AFENREIR
E\%@?ﬁﬂﬁz%%ﬁ@ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ%% A
R B AZIREREEN °

REEEEAHEANEE  BERKAE
BRI FEBEDRER R 2 R ZEE
FE%&Q‘T%H{%EHETEATEEEEEM, °

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 F3§

55



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 k¢ M ik

Year ended 31 March 2012

He—ZT——HF#=-F=+—HItFE

3. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

(©

Investment in an associate (continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets or disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the sale is highly probable and the non-current
asset is available for immediate sale in its present
condition. Management must be committed to the sale,
which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their previous
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group,
which comprises operations and cash flows that can be
clearly distinguished, operationally and for financial
reporting purposes from the rest of the Group, and has
been disposal of, or is classified as held for sale, and
either (a) represents a separate major line of business or
geographical are of operations, (b) is part of a single co-
ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of
business or geographical are of operations or (c) is a
subsidiary acquired exclusive with a view of resale.
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3. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

()

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable,
can be measured reliably, revenue is measured at fair
value of the consideration received or receivable and
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

Dividends
Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment is established.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment
losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives and
after taking into account their estimated residual values,
using the straight line method, at the following rates:

Computer equipment 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Leasehold improvement 25%
Office equipment 20%

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in
profit or loss.
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3. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

(h)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwiill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. In addition, intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet
available for use are tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised as an expense immediately, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as revaluation decrease under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount under another standard, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated
as a revaluation increase under that standard.
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3. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

(i)

Foreign currency

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity are recorded in the
respective functional currency at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period, and their income and expense items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in
which case the exchange rates at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity (exchange reserve).
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3. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

0)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of
the three categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables,
and available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets
designated as at FVTPL, of which interest income is
included in net gains or losses.
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3. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

0)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories,
including financial assets held for trading and those
designated at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.
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3. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

0)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. At the end of reporting period
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated or not classified as
financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-
to-maturity investments. The Group designated unlisted
equity securities investments as AFS financial assets.

AFS financial assets are measured at fair value at the end
of the reporting period. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of investment revaluation
reserve until the financial asset is disposed of or
determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see
accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on
financial assets below).

AFS investments that do not have a quoted market price
in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments,
they are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the end of the reporting period.
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3. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

0)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at end of reporting period.
Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.

For an AFS equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.
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3. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

0)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity securities, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss in subsequent periods. Any increase
in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated under
the heading of investments revaluation reserve. In respect
to of AFS debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of
the investment can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.
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3. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

0)

Financial instruments (continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue cost.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis other than those financial liabilities designated as at
FVTPL, of which the interest expense is included in net
gains or losses.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL has two subcategories,
including financial liabilities held for trading and those
designated at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near future; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of an identified
portfolio of financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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3. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

0)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (continued)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

° the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at
FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in fair
value recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss excluded any interest paid on the financial
liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including other payables and
accrued charges) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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3. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

0)

Financial instruments (continued)

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Company that contain
both the liability and conversion option components are
classified separately into respective items on initial
recognition. Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market
interest rate of similar non-convertible debts. The
difference between the gross proceeds of the issue of the
convertible bonds and the fair value assigned to the
liability component, representing the conversion option for
the holder to convert the bonds into equity, is included in
convertible bonds equity reserve.

At the end of the reporting period, the liability component
of convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The conversion option classified
as equity will remain in the convertible bonds equity
reserve until the conversion option is exercised, in which
case, the balance stated in the convertible bonds equity
reserve will be transferred to share premium. Where the
conversion option remains unexercised at the maturity
date, the balance stated in the convertible bonds equity
reserve will be released to accumulated losses. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or
expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of the gross
proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are recognised directly in equity. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are included in the
carrying amount of the liability component and are
amortised over the lives of the convertible bonds using
the effective interest method.
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3. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

0)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying amount
of the financial asset between the part it continues to
recognise, and the part it no longer recognises on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date
of the transfer. The difference between the carrying
amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised
and the sum of the consideration received for the part no
longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss
allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.
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3. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

0)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition (continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated income statement because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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3. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

(k)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the assets to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

Current or deferred tax for the year is recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.
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3. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

(1)

Share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to directors, employees and
consultants in equity-settled share-based payment
transaction

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the grant date and is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of the reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of
the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss
such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
options reserve.

For share options that are vested at the date of grant, the
fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share option reserve will be transferred to accumulated
profit or loss.

Related party

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common
control or common significant influence. Related parties
may be individuals or corporate entities.
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3. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

(n)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
state-managed retirement benefit scheme are recognised
as expenses as they fall due. The Group’s obligations
under state-managed retirement benefits schemes are
equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution
retirement benefits scheme.

Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of past events; and it is probable
that the Group will be required to settle the obligation.
Provisions are measured at the directors’ best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end
of reporting period, and are discounted to present value
where the effect is material.

Operating lease

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Rental payable under operating leases are charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised
as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and
on hand, time deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term liquid investments which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. For
the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
bank overdrafts and bank loans, if any, which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of an
enterprise’s cash managements, are also included as
component of cash and cash equivalents.

3.

FREFHEE)
(n) EBARERRA

AR B AR S RBEREREARE
FEH BN RN B BN R R -
AEBERBEREZRARBENGEERE
T2 BEETIRER R EHRFR KB
BIMELE -

B
EASEABEEMHMAREEERE
REBAREAGHEE TR EREE - B
BHREENREMRELEETENT
X2 REMGFE URFEERE
BRIREIRE -

HEHEY
EHENGTERBAIOMEEAR K
Bl TAEBEA - BORDBRREBRL -
MIAEMBENDBEREEHLY -

REBEEHEVEN 2E2TIZERBLY
HBRABEENBRE P - ERFTL
KERnzBEM DR R ER ZMETY
NEAEREBEHRERRBESAXZ
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Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of reporting period that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below.

Depreciation and amortisation

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment over
their estimated useful lives and after taking into account their
estimated residual values, using the straight line method. The
estimated useful lives reflect the directors’ estimate of the
periods that the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment. The residual values reflect the directors’ estimated
amount that the Group would currently obtain from the disposal
of the assets, after deducting the estimated costs of disposal, if
the assets were already of the age and in the condition
expected at the end of its useful life.

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The Group’s provision policy for bad and doubtful debts is
based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing analysis of
accounts and management’s judgement. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
customer. If the financial conditions of customers of the Group
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to
make payments, additional allowance may be required.

4.

BRETHERATTHBAREZE
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Capital Risk Management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated
as total debts divided by total assets. Total debts included
convertible bonds, bank overdrafts, other payables and accrued
charges and amount due to a shareholder and total assets
included non-current assets and current assets as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The gearing ratio at the end of reporting period was as follows:

5.

EeEBER

$’§IZ,§/‘”I¥ B RREARE B R B
CURBRREREHE REMMEERE A

Xﬂﬁﬁ' Ry e 45 A= B A A 18 DARUE B AR

o BEERARHBERGERE  AEETHER

PR Z LS - MBCRERME A - BT

13k & & B LARRETS ©

AEBMERMRZEME B REERGLE
REEERER o I ERDAMEBEREREE
BEAE - MEEPBHRERMR  BFERE
BREBMEES  RITEX - EMENRIER
FEETERAR BN —BERFA - BERER
BREIRDEENRBDEE °

RIERR - EEABHLENT :

2012 2011

—E——F —ET——F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

THET FHIT

Debts b 3,232 40,560
Total assets BEBE 45,242 33,956
Gearing ratio BEAGBEE 0.07 1.19

The gearing ratio decreased primarily as a result that the
Group’s convertible bonds were fully redeemed during the year.

BEABLETY®  DEXERREEFREHR
B AT AR (B 2 PR o
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Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
investments, loans receivable, other receivables and other
payables. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
the respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies applied by the Group to mitigate
these risks are set out below. Management monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented in
a timely and effective manner.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Except for the cash and cash equivalents which carry floating
interest rate, the Group has no other significant interest-bearing
assets with floating rates. The Group’s income and operating
cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates.

Sensitivity analysis

Assuming the balance at 31 March 2012 was the amount for
the whole year, if the interest rate was 50 basis points higher or
lower (2011: 50 basis points higher or lower) and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s loss for the year
ended 31 March 2012 would decrease or increase by
HK$29,806 (2011: increase or decrease by HK$112).

6.

BHEREEREREE

AEEFEMBIABERZRYE  EKRE
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Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to the Korean Won (“KRW?”) and the Renminbi
(“RMB”). Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table shows the sensitivity analysis of a 5%
increase/decrease (2011: 5% increase/decrease) in KRW and
RMB against the Hong Kong dollars, the effect in the loss for
the year is as follows:

6.

MHRREEEERBEK(&E)

SN JEL B

AEEBEXBER(  AXKEZEEE ZINE

Rk R ERRBKRERT((EIT) RAR
BITARE]D - SMNERRIKBBINEBZ KK
BERS  KHRABERABNURKREFHE -

HEED I
FRIRBERARYEALAT LI FHE%
(ZF——F : L7/ THs%) HAFE A
2B BBEN

Impact of KRW Impact of RMB
BrogE AREZRE

2012

—E—_4F
HK$’000
FET

Decrease/increase in loss  AREEEERYD
for the year 0 1,690

2012

—E—_—F
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Fist TR FHT

1,689 304 56

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to financial assets price risks as
investments held by the Group are classified on the
consolidated statement of financial position either as available-
for-sale financial assets or as financial assets held for trading.
To manage its price risk arising from investments in financial
assets, the Group diversifies its portfolio.

If the financial assets’ price of the respective investments held
by the Group as available-for-sale financial assets was higher or
lower by 5% as at 31 March 2012 (2011: 5% higher or lower),
the Group’s investment revaluation reserve would increase or
decrease by approximately HK$1,081,000 (2011:
HK$338,000).

If the financial assets’ price of the respective investments held
by the Group as financial assets held for trading was higher or
lower by 5% as at 31 March 2012 (2011: 5% higher or lower),
the Group’s loss for the year and would decrease or increase
by HK$30,700 (201 1: HK$nil).

RAMEE R
AEEAXPHEEBRER - JIARNAKE
I RER SR MBIMR R D R L EMH
BESFHEFEEMHEE - REELREMHK
BEMSIBZEBRAR AEERKEKREHLS
FZTCRE -

HEREENAIHEMBEEFAMEERE
WA BEAEBBRN - E——F=A=+—
HEASKHA%(ZF——F: FFAsmd
5%)  BIANE @~ % & & 1 6 5 15 18 Hn sl st A
#91,081,000787T.( =ZF ——4F : 338,000/ 7T) °

WERAEBEUFEEENBEEFAMIEES
BRAEZUBEEBRR-_ZE—ZF=A
=+ —A LA 5% (T ——F : EFE
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Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

Credit risk

In order to control the credit risk, management of the Group will
check the financial background of the loan debtors and exercise
due care in granting any credit. The management will determine
credit limits and set monitoring procedures to review the credit
status of the debtors and ensure that follow-up action is taken
promptly to recover overdue debts. In addition, management
will review and assess the recoverability of each receivable at
the end of a reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regards, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is under control.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash flows.
With regard to Year 2011 and thereafter, the liquidity of the
Group is primarily dependent on its ability to maintain adequate
cash flow from operations and to raise funds through issue and
allotment of new shares to meet its debt obligations as they fall
due.

6.
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Financial Risk Management Objectives and 6. HMEREKBEEEERBEEK(Z)
Policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end

REBES R (E)
AEBERRERRZFBAEIHANT

of reporting period is as follows:

Weighted
average Total
effective  Less than 1 year to undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 5 years cash flows amount
E¥H FHRRE
BERFI= —FR —-FERF mEARE BREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7 B THE AR
At 31 March 2012 RZT——F
=A=1+—H
Other payables and HAtn TR K
accrued charges [ B N/A RiEH 1,224 - 1,224 1,224
At 31 March 2011 RZE—%F
=A=+—-H
Bank overdraft BITEX N/A i F 309 - 309 309
Other payables and HibERNFUER
accrued charges [EstER N/A TE A 5,522 - 5,522 5,522
Amount due to a shareholder e — & RETIE N/A 18 A 4,200 — 4,200 4,200
Convertible bonds B EE 29.47% - 30,529 30,529 30,529
10,031 30,529 40,560 40,560
Fair value A E

As at 31 March 2012, the carrying amount of cash and cash
equivalent, other receivables, prepayments and deposits and
other payables and accrued charges approximated their fair
values due to short-term maturities of these assets and
liabilities. The Group considers that financial assets held for
trading included in the consolidated statement of financial
position at amounts approximating to their fair values.

RZE—Z—ZF=A=+—H B kREZFE
W)~ Bt FEUCERIE - TR FRIE IR S DA KR E A
ENFIERESER ZREAEREL QN FEE
5 RAAZSEERBEBRBIEH - A&
ERG  REaMBIRAKRRNGTAZFHIEER
M EESHEEENTEES
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6. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 6. HMEREKBEEEERBEEK(Z)
Policies (continued)

Fair values on financial instruments BB IAEZAFE

()  Financial instruments carried at fair value () HRAFEIEZHETA
The following table presents the carrying value of financial TERAR-_ZE——F=ZA=+—HBEA
instruments measured at fair value at 31 March 2012 FEFAEABREEMBRELENET
across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined REe@MT A HEAMAT=MARAFESE
in HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures, with the BHE MBI AREE  ER2HRE
fair value of each financial instrument categorised in its BYEZAFEFEMEBERZ&ER
entirety based on the lowest level of input that is ABBYE SBEYBITARATE:
significant to that fair value measurement. The levels are SMAFEWT -

defined as follows:

—  Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using - B—H(&EaH)  ATEERAER
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for TiZEAERY % T A Z wE (L&
‘E'Ja

identical financial instruments. BIFE -

—  Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in — B ATEEAEEMSEHE
active markets for similar financial instruments, or UM B IRz RENRABAEEKR
using valuation techniques in which all significant BABBEESREERTEBED
inputs are directly or indirectly based on observable HEEZ HERMETE -

market data.

—  Level 3 (lowest level): fair value measured using —  B=R(HERK) : 2FERAEM
valuation techniques in which any significant input is FERBAZIRWIEER B R TS
not based on observable market data. R hERMNEE -

At 31 March 2012, the Group had the following financial RZZE—Z—F=A=+—H  X%£&EFH

instruments carried at fair value: TIRATEYR BB IA

2012

—E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Assets: BE -

Level 1: Financial assets held for trading F—H BEEBEUBEE 614 —

Level 2: Available-for-sale financial assets BN A HEMKEE 18,185 —

Level 3: Available-for-sale financial assets Fo o JHEMBEE 3,429 6,767

22,228 6,767
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6. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 6. HMEREKBEEEERBEEK(Z)
Policies (continued)

Fair values on financial instruments (continued) MBRIAZANFEE)
()  Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued) () BAFEIRZHETA(E)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of FoRUBEERATFETE 2

financial assets:

2012 2011
—F--F —IT—%
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT T
Opening balance FHEER 6,767 7,072
Disposals B (3,221) —
Exchange difference fEH =5 (117) 115
Losses recognised in other comprehensive REA 2 RS HER
income 2 &8 = (420)
Closing balance FRER 3,429 6,767
All of the above losses included in other comprehensive EMlFF AR FEEMEZEBNERNZAE
income for the current year relate to unquoted equity BB RN EAARTE 2 IEMERAR
investments held at the end of the reporting period and BEB WEEWmA[BRESHFHEE]E
are reported as changes of “investment revaluation -
reserve”.
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6. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 6. HMEREKBEEEERBEEK(Z)
Policies (continued)

Fair values on financial instruments (continued) MBRIAZANFEE)

(i) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other (i) BHRFEUIINERZHBFETLREZRF
than fair value =]
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s RNEE RARRIEKAR R FTR A I
financial instruments carried at cost less accumulated CUBTAZREBEEENR_T—=
impairments were not materially different from their fair F=A=1T—RAZAFETESKTHE -

values as at 31 March 2012.

2012
—B——fF

Carrying Carrying

amount Fair value amount Fair value
fREE AFE BRmEE ASEIE]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TET FAT FAT

The Group: REH :
Loans receivable FE UL 3R - = 25,614 25,614
Other receivables, deposits — Efh EUW A « 2%

and prepayments R IBAF0E 3,317 3,317 1,159 1,159
Amount due from FEUR — AR R FRIE

a shareholder 3,884 3,884 — —
Bank and cash balances RITRIR & 5,954 5,954 23 23
Bank overdraft RITHEX - = (309) (309)
Amount due to JES — B FRIE

a shareholder - - (4,200) (4,200)
Other payables and HAth FETFRIE 2

accrued charges fEstE A (1,224) (1,224) (6,522 (5,522)
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6. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 6. H¥EKREEEERBK(Z)
Policies (continued)

Classification and fair value of financial assets and MREENREBZBRATE
liabilities
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RGN SMBIAESHEZREBENT

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Financial Other
assets Loan and financial
at FVTPL receivables liabilities
RAYE
FFAEER
BEEZ BERK Ht
MK EE PE R IR Mg aE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THERT THET
At 31 March 2012 RZE——F
—A=+—H
Financial assets held for BIEEBEVKEE
trading 614 - - 614
Other receivables, deposits  E b & Y 7118 -
and prepayments me RIERHKIEA = 3,317 = 3,317
Amount due from FEU — & AR R R IA
a shareholder - 3,884 - 3,884
Bank and cash balances RIT MRS T = 5,954 = 5,954
614 13,155 - 13,769
Other payables and accrued E fth f& {5 2018 &
charges fEETE R = - 1,224 1,224
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6. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 6. HMEREKBEEEERBEEK(Z)
Policies (continued)
Classification and fair value of financial assets and MKEEREBBZYBERATE(E)
liabilities (continued)

Financial Other

assets Loan and financial

at FVTPL receivables liabilities
bi:/NS ]
FFAEER

BREZ Bk Hith
MBEE U kIR MBaE #est
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TAET TR TAET TET

At 31 March 2011 RoZT——F
=A=+—H
Loans receivable JEWE R — 25,614 — 25,614
Other receivables, deposits  E b & Y 2118 -
and prepayments Ze RIEHIE — 1,159 — 1,189
Bank and cash balances RITMIR S 4ETF — 23 — 23
— 26,796 — 26,796
Bank overdraft HRITESX - 309 — 309
Other payables and E A FIEL
accrued charges fEstE R — — 5,622 5,622
Amount due to JER — BRI R FRIE
a shareholder — — 4,200 4,200
Convertible bonds AmRES — 30,529 — 30,529
— 30,838 9,722 40,560
Estimation of fair value NEEGE
Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time and NHEGFF TR EEEBREEETSEER X
based on relevant market information and information about the BB IAEZERHEL - EHEBTEM
financial instrument. These estimates are subjective in nature SN TABRAZE N EAMESEE Bt T
and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgement TERET - BREE SR Y HaTE
and therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes in KERTE -

bases of assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.
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Revenue and Other Income
An analysis of revenue and other income is as follows:

WA R EH AU A
WAREMBADATIT :

2012 2011
—E—-F —FT—F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Revenue: L ONE
Interest income from available-for-sale Al EEEEZ A E WA
financial assets 748 —
Other income: N N
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEHEMEEE 2 W=
financial assets 1,008 —
Bank interest income RITHBUA 1 —
Written off of accruals WEHERT & A 200 —
1,209 —
Total revenue and other income BEEEER 2 WA
from continuing operations BRI PN L 1,957 -

The Group’s revenue represents interest income from
investment in convertible bonds which are available-for-sale
financial assets included in consolidated statement of financial
position. No other source of income contributed to the Group’s
revenue for both 2012 and 2011.

Segment Information
Segment information is presented by way of two segment
formats: (i) operating segment; and (i) geographical information.

The Group’s operating segment is investment holding which
comprises the investment in unlisted and listed companies in
order to achieve short and medium-term capital appreciation.
Since this is the only segment of the Company, no further
analysis thereof is presented.

AEEZBAERARBRES ZRE 2 F B
A DEBRESAMBRARZIHENBE
E-RZBE-—HFR-IT——F WHEAMK
ARBRREEZ WAEHERL -

PEER
PEERTIEWNESERRER  ((KEHE
R (i) o [ B Y o

AEBZEEZDRRFARE  ETEERE
FELMRETMRA  WEBREHEPHERIE
B ARUERARRE D RAEZE
— 2o e
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Segment Information (continued)
The Group operates in three principal geographical areas —

8.

Hong Kong SAR, the People’s Republic of China (excluding
Hong Kong) (the “PRC”) and The Republic of Korea. The
Group’s segment assets and liabilities as at 31 March, analysed
by geographical area, are as follows:

TRER ()
AEERZEEEHE - BEFE  PEA
RAME (FREES) (HE) RBEHEE -
FAEERZ A=+ BRMEA T2 HREE
REMHOT

The Republic of

Hong Kong, SAR The PRC Korea Total
ERRE HE #E @t
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
“®-CF Z3F Z%--F ZFF S%8-CF 2FF Z%-2F %
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
TER TET TEx TAT TERT THBT TER BT
ASSETS AND BEHER
LIABILITIES
Assets BE
Segment assets SHEE 2,837 110 6,074 1,117 4,370 30,225 13,281 31,452
Unallocated corporate A2 EEA A
assets BE 31,961 2,504
Total assets BEAE 45,242 33,956
Liabilities BE
Segment liabilities PEEE = — - - 2,008 1,291 2,008 1,291
Unallocated corporate A LA A
liabilities B 1,224 39,269
Total liabilities afEweE 3,232 40,560
Other information: Higs:
Addition to REFERE
non-current assets LE 3,540 87 - — - - 3,540 87
Depreciation e 749 209 - - 88 85 837 294
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9. Finance Costs 9. EERAE
2012 2011
—B--F —F—F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET FATT
Interest on borrowings wholly repayable ERAFARBEERZ
within five years: BERE
Interest expenses on convertible bonds Al E AT 2R S 63 3,916
Imputed interest on convertible bonds AR EFHEER S 85 3,343
148 7,259
10. Taxation 10. HIE
No provision for profits tax is required since the Group has no ARAEBRAFEALBIREE BB KEMT]
assessable profits either arising from Hong Kong or other FERER 2 ERTUREMN(ZE——F - TBL) -
jurisdictions during the year (2011: HKS$nil). HUBAR AT VE L B4 -
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the assessable 8 N5 750 Bt /i M8 5 2 I AR B ) 42 16.5% &1
profits for both years. Ho

b RDERE R TR IR A B R AR R IR T IR KT

o

Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at the rates

mp Ot

prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.
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Year ended 31 March 2012
HE-_Z——F=-A=1+—HILFE

10. Taxation (continued) 10. BB (&)
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss before REEMRIB HEGEERGRARTATEEZ
taxation per consolidated income statement as follows: R -
2012 2011
—F--F —IT—%
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT T
Loss before taxation BT A S 18 (7,293) (16,173)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of R PS B 16.5%

16.5% (2011: 16.5%) (ZF——%F 1 16.5%) 5T E 2B (1,203) (2,669)
Tax effect of share of results of an associate DG — KL NGl EE 2 RIGTE 1 —
Tax effect of expenses that are not FAEE TE FE SR B v I B AN ] 08

deductible in determining taxable profit X ZBBEeE 839 1,810
Tax effect of non-taxable revenues BAERBMBA 2 BB (1,057) -
Tax effect on temporary differences not KRR S =50 IS &

recognised 96 28

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERBMIBEIB ZHRETE 1,324 831
Tax charge for the year REEHIEZL - -
No provision for deferred tax liabilities has been made in the HREREZE BT EHAEBME T~ E
consolidated financial statements as the tax effect of the K A ERERE M RAMETETIBAEE
temporary difference is immaterial to the Group. A -
At the end of reporting period, the Group had unused tax losses R EBR - NEEEEAR R 2 REH
of approximately HK$31,942,000 (2011: approximately FIE B 1840 £31,942,0008 0 (=T ——&F ¢
HK$23,920,000) available for offset against future profits that #923,920,0007% 7T ) + AT MEPR BRAE 6% - AT
may be carried forward indefinitely. No deferred tax asset has BT AR AR AR E - A BT IE IR R
been recognised in respect of the tax losses due to BIEFIEEE -

unpredictability of future profit streams.
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Year ended 31 March 2012
HE-_Z——F=-A=1+—HILFE

11. Loss for the Year from Continuing 11. FERKREER 2 ARFEEFE
Operations
Loss for the year from continuing operations is stated after FEEEEB 2 A FEEERNBRATIER &
charging the following: 5l BE -
2012 2011
—B--F —F—F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET FATT
Staff costs 8 TR
Salaries e 263 719
Contributions to Mandatory Provident B AES ([RES ) FTEIHRK
Fund (“MPF”) scheme 11 32
Equity-settled share-based payment W A B AR R 53R 113 —
Total staff costs excluding directors’ 8 TRk AR4a%8
remunerations (note 16) (TEREESHE) (HFE16) 387 751
Auditors’ remuneration 1% SR B & 320 171
Annual listing fee FELMER 170 145
Depreciation e 749 209
Directors’ remuneration = 3,856 856
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEDE  BMEMREZER
and equipment 63 488
Equity-settled share-based payments RSB AR 3R 2,965 —
Investment manager’s fee SEKIRER 569 100
Legal and professional fees FEEREXER 247 3,418
Rent and rates HeREM 1,945 880
12. Dividends 12. B2
The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for EETERERMNMETE ZRE ©
both years.
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13. Discontinued Operations 13. CRIEREEK
The Group’s investment business in Korea has been disposed REBBRAREEBENFEREBEE - 2
of subsequent to the year end date. The results of the Bl EXB 2 EEC R AR KILEEER
investment business in Korea has been presented as WEFFAZERERA - HIOT o 2RI
discontinued operations and included in the consolidated BEB BRI MRERED TEFZY
income statement as set out below. The comparative expenses ETRAFEDEABRIE ZEEHEEE o

and cash flows from discontinued operations have been re-
presented to include those operations classified as discontinued
in the current year.

2012 2011
—g—=f —T—%

HK$’000 HK$’000
FH TR

Profit for the year from discontinued ERIEREER 2 ARFERF

operations
Revenue WA 2,038 3,480
Other income H U A = 78
Expenses & (1,007) (668)
Attributable income tax expense FEAEFTS RIS = —
Profit for the year from discontinued RARGER ANEIEERIE

operations attributable to the owners $ TS 7 AN S5 T

of the Company 1,031 2,890

Profit for the year from discontinued RIS 2 R EE ST

operations include the following: BEUTEE:

Depreciation e 88 85
Cash flows from discontinued CRIEREERCHSRESHTE

operations include in

Net cash outflow from operating activities RTINS R AR (2) (30)
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14. Assets Classified as Held for Sale 14. P EABFELHEZEE

On 21 February 2012, the Company entered into a conditional RZE——F_A=-+—H ARAHE—FF
sale and purchase agreement with an independent third party NEZFIUBEHEEERZE  UWHEERAR
for the disposal of the Company’s entire 100% interests in Asia 7 Asia Light Limited 5 £ i & 2 & 2 #5100%
Light Limited and its subsidiary, being the Group’s investment o IAEE2EHKEEER(ERE
business in Korea (“Korean Investment”) for a cash &) BE&REAR1,000,0008 T FERHIEE
consideration of HK$1 million. The Korean Investment has been BERIANDEABIELEZEE - HEERZ
presented as assets classified as held for sale. The disposal T-—ZFHAZTHTEK - REREHRR - B
had been completed on 20 April 2012. The assets and liabilities REZEBERBENOT

of the Korean Investment at the end of the reporting period are

as follows:

2012

—E——F

HK$’000

FET

Property, plant and equipment ME - BE MR 187

Available-for-sale financial assets AINEMKEE 3,429

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments Hab U FRTE « e MTEN R IE 754

Cash and bank balances Re RIEITHET 7

Assets classified as held for sale DEEAFBIERNEZEE 4,377

Liabilities directly associated with asset classified HOMARIERECEAERRE

as held for sale, being other payables and EHzaE  BEMEMNKER

accrued charges EstE R 2,008

Net assets of Korean Investment BRHIGEECEEFE 2,369
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15. BREIE
REBELCERODRILEEEK
ANEEE AEEHECERBRIEEES
2 EBREAREEEE BRI TR E

15. Loss Per Share
From continuing and discontinued operations
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share from
continuing and discontinued operations attributable to owners
of the Company is based on the following data:

2012
—E——F

HK$’000
TR

HK$'000
T

Loss for the year

Loss for the year attributable to owners

REE RIS

RRABHEAANBIEAFERE

of the Company (6,262) (13,283)
Number of shares f&mEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ Rt EGREREIE Y

for the purpose of basic loss per share I3 A% A A AR BK 622,031,582 29,811,200

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share from
continuing operations attributable to owners of the Company is

based on the following data:

REFBEEEER
ARBREBEARERHBELEER 2 SRERR
BEERIRBATERE

2012
—E-—C—F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET T
Loss for the year attributable to owners KARER AEG
of the Company NEEEE (6,262) (13,2893
Less: Profit for the year from W BRI R 2
discontinued operations REE R 1,031 2,890
Loss for the purpose of basic loss per share RRETERELEEBER
from continuing operations HAEBBZER (7,293) (16,173)

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above

for both basic and diluted loss per share.

PR BHE E Xl G E SR ER R EEE A
PR AR ©
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15.

16.

Year ended 31 March 2012
HE-_Z——F=-A=1+—HILFE

Loss Per Share (continued)

From discontinued operations

Basic earning per share for the discontinued operations is
HKO0.16 cents per share (2011: HK9.69 cents per share) based
on the profit for the year from the discontinued operations of
HK$1,031,000 (2011: HK$2,890,000).

Effect of dilutive potential shares in respect of outstanding share
options and convertible bonds would result in an anti-dilutive
effect in the calculation of diluted loss per share from continuing
and discontinued operations. Therefore, the basic and diluted
loss per share in 2012 and 2011 are the same.

Directors’ and Five Highest Paid Individuals’
Emoluments
(@) Directors

The aggregate amount of emoluments payable by the

Group during the year is as follows:

15. BREE (&)
RECHKIEREER
IRHR B A% F A & 575 2 N5 2 3% F11,081,000
B (ZF——4 2,890,000 T)stE - B
RIS EBEBRERRF BER0167EIL(=
T——F : B&9.698l) -

RAERELERERIEREEB 2 8RS
BRI - W RTTERE A &2 AT BB 75 P8 2
ZEEESR e EL REEME - At 1
TR CER T EREANEES
1BER -

16. EERTEREFALTZEHE

@ E=
REERAFEENMSBELT -

2012 2011
—g-=f -—T &
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Fees we

Executive directors WITES 726 483
Non-executive directors JEHITEE 243 -
Independent non-executive directors BWYUIEHITES 656 240
1,625 723

Other emoluments E e
Basic salaries and other benefits EXF e MEMET 568 103
Contributions to MPF scheme wiEE AR 11 —
Equity-settled share-based payments HELRHEE AR S 3k 1,652 —
3,856 826
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16. Directors’ and Five Highest Paid Individuals’ 16. EERAEZESHFA LT ZEHE (E)
Emoluments (continued)

(a) Directors (continued) @@ EE#E)
No directors had waived any emoluments and no RAFE  MEESHEECFNE - 75
emoluments were paid to the directors as inducement to ERESTINEAME  (EAEEBEIEM
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss AREEIRIMAREE R 2 52E) - ok
of office during the year (2011: ni). ERBEBAEE (2 ——F : &) o
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the sixteen ENSENTREB(ZE——F: +5)
(2011: ten) directors are as follows: EECMelT

Salaries  Contribution Share-
and other to MPF based
Fee benefit scheme payments 2011

Be HERHMERN EESHIMR DETES “B—-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THT Tir TAL 7 FATL

Executive directors HITEE
Antonio lbrahim Tambunan Antonio lorahim

(note 2) Tambunan (Ff£2) - - - - - %5
Kwok Ho On, Anthony (note 8) e % (Hf5#3) 1 - - — 1 35
Mark Damion Go (note 3) Mark Damion Go

(F3ta) 25 - 1 - 26 460

Tang Hin Keung Alfred (note 8)  E84738 ([i153) 1 - - _ 1 60
Thanh Hung Tai (note 1) ek (1) - - _ _ _ 6
L Ho fote 818 i326) 27 - - - 27 -
Zhang Ying Hui (rote FEA(HD) 2% - - - 25 .
Wong Chak Keung (note 6) E24(1326) 237 568 10 3 1528 -

Non-executive directors ¥97ES
Chen Yibiao (note 9) BRI (H3t0) 237 - - - 237 -
Deng Li (note 11) B (st 1) 6 - - 73 79 -

Independent non-executive BUFHTEE

directors
Li Man Nang (note 3) X EAGER) 1 - - - 1 80
Jeffrey John Ervine (note 2) Jeffrey John Ervine

(i) - - - - - %

Choi Yong Seok (note 3) EYNEER) 1 - - - 1 60
Leung Chi Hung (note 4) Rt (i) 2 - - - ) 60
Ngan Woon Man, Eddie (note 5) ~ Z#af (Hi35) 1 - - _ 1 35
Ba Shusong (note 7 B (H37) 83 - - _ 8 _
Fong Wo, Felix (note 6) FA(HEe) 237 - - 113 350 .
Tang Ping Sum (note 6) EiE R 237 - - 113 350 .
Lung Chee Ming, George 78 (M 10)

(note 10) o4 _ _ _ 9 _
Total Eoh 1,625 568 11 1,652 3,856 826
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16. Directors’ and Five Highest Paid Individuals’
Emoluments (continued)

Directors (continued)
Notes:

(@)

S

10.

11.

Resigned on 7 May 2010

Resigned on 31 August 2010

Resigned on 6 April 2011

Resigned on 11 April 2011

Appointed on 31 August 2010 and resigned on 11 April
2011

Appointed on 6 April 2011

Appointed on 6 April 2011 and resigned on 11 August
2011

Appointed on 6 April 2011 and resigned on 15 March
2012

Appointed on 6 April 2011 and removed on 18 April 2012

Appointed on 10 November 2011 and resigned on 1 May
2012
Appointed on 23 March 2012

The number of directors whose remuneration fell within

the following band is as follow:

16. EERTEREFALTZME ()

(@)

EE(E)

Kzt -

1. NZZE—TFAHALHEHT

2. RZZE-ZFN\A=+—HBEHE

3. KT ——FWMANBEHT

4. RZZE——FMNA+—BEHE

5. RZZE-ZFNA=+T—HEZEER
T ——FMNA+—HEHTE

6. MZZE——FMANBEEE

7. RIE——FHARNAEZERR=-Z
——FN\A+—HET

8. REZZE——FNANBEZERR=F
——H=A+HBET

9. RZZE——FNANBEZERR=F
——FMA+N\BER

10. RZZE——F+—-—ATHEZERRZ
T-—FRA—HET

1. RZE——_FZA-+=HEZT

MeENTFUTHE 2 ZESHEWT ¢

HKS$nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1

,000,001 to HK$3,000,000

Z T2 1,000,000%8 7T
1,000,001 % 7L £ 3,000,000 7 7T

15 10
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16. Directors’ and Five Highest Paid Individuals’

Year ended 31 March 2012
HE-_Z——F=-A=1+—HILFE

Emoluments (continued)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals’ emoluments (b)
The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals

include 3 (2011: 2) directors were as follows:

16. EERTEREFALTZME ()

TEREFALTZHME
hEHPRE=2(2F——F : M%)
ER)REFALTZHMEWNT

2012 2011

—g-=% -—T——F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET T

Basic salaries and other benefits EXH & REMET 1,048 1,428
Contributions to MPF scheme BB B 10 39
Equity-settled share-based payments M E DA 3R 2,965 —
4,023 1,462

The number of the five highest paid individuals whose

remuneration fell within the following band is as follow:

MENFUTHE 2 ARERHA LR
BT -

HKS$nil to HK$1,000,000 T 7T E 1,000,0007% 7T

HK$1,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 1,000,001 8 7£. & 3,000,000 % 7T 1 -

There was no arrangement under which any of the five
(2011: five) highest paid employees had waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration during the year.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the directors or the highest paid employees as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office (2011: nil).

RAFE  BETLERNZHFBRELSR
(ZF——F AR ERHEREPE
AL HEXRBEREE M

RAFE  AEEYERAEMNESHK
SHRERENEMNME - EREEEN
AREERNMAREE R 2 527 - =X
ERBIBAHE(ZE——F - &) -
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Year ended 31 March 2012
HE-T——F=A=1+—HIFE
17. Property, Plant and Equipment 17. Y% - BERRE
Furniture
Leasehold and Office
improvement fixtures  equipment

B8 BR HAZ

Computer
equipment Total

ESL kB B4 EBRR st

HK$' 000
TATL

HK$' 000
TATL

HK$' 000
TAT

HK$' 000
TATL

cosT RAE
At 1 Apri 2010 RZE-ZFEMA-H 626 447 68 159 1,300
Additions BE 75 12 - - 87
Disposals e (701) - - - (701)
Exchange difference ERER - 14 - - 14
At 31 March 2011and 1 April 2011 RZE—%=A=+-H
R=Z——%MmA-A - 473 68 159 700

Additions BE 3,466 54 - 20 3,540
Disposals e - (28) 68) (159) (259)
Exchange difference EiEE - (19) - - (19)
Eliminated on reclassfication as held B RABELERS

for sale - (432) - - (432)
At 31 March 2012 WZZE-ZF=f=1-H 3,466 52 - 20 3,538
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT RERAE
At 1 April 2010 RZE-TFMA-A 52 73 20 74 219
Exchange difference EHZE - 7 - - 7
Eliminated on disposals HER (213) - - - (213)
Charge for the year FEEYH 161 89 12 32 294
At 31 March 2011and 1 April 2011 RZEF——F=R=1-H

R=F——%MA—-A - 169 ) 106 307

Charge for the year RERTH 693 9 12 3 837
Eliminated on disposals LERA - (11) (44) (187) (192)
Exchange difference BiER - ©) - - ©)
Eliminated on reclassfication as held BN EABELERS

for sale - (45) - - (45)
At 31 March 2012 RZE-—F=ZA=+-H 693 6 - 2 701
NET BOOK VALUF RERFE
At 31 March 2012 RZE-—%=A=1-H 2,173 46 - 18 2,837
At 31 March 2011 RZE——F=f=1-H - 304 36 53 303
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Year ended 31 March 2012
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Name of
investee company

BXRENALE

Shanghai Health Bio-
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai Health’)

HEERENEE
BRAR
([ HeEk)

Percentage
Place of of interest Unlisted equity
establishment held securities, at cost Fair value adjustment
Frisis ¥ EmRAES -
R BAL BRAE NHERE
2012 2011 2012 2011

18. Available-for-sale Financial Assets 18. ATHEMKEE
2012 2011
—E——F —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F& T
Unlisted equity securities overseas, HINELTIRAFZS
at fair value (note i) LA FE (MDD - 1,117
Unlisted equity securities overseas, YBINIE E TR AR 55
at cost (note ii) LR AVE (MIEEi) 3,429 5,650
Unlisted debt securities overseas, YGINE ETHERSE S -
at fair value (note iii) A FE (M EEii) 18,185 —
21,614 6,767
Reclassified as disposal group held for sale ENDEABIERE ZHEART (3,429) —
18,185 6,767
Particulars of available-for-sale financial assets are as follows: AHERBEEFIBRT :
Note i B -

Carrying value

REE
2012 2011

“E--f -2—% CZg-Zf T4 IZB-Zf Z—T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FER BT TR TiEn

PRC 5% = 1,991 = 874)
cp

TR TET
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18. IHENBEE (&)

18. Available-for-sale Financial Assets (continued)

Shanghai Health is principally engaged in development of
medical products in the PRC. No dividend was received or
receivable during the year. In January 2012, the Company had
disposed of its equity interest in Shanghai Health at a
consideration of HK$3,000,000.

LHEBRTREENEREEEEMEY -
AFEALBDWHEWRE - RZFT—ZF
— A ARFREHEER LGER 2 RAE
# » {84 3,000,00078 7T °

Note ii: B E i -
Percentage
Name of investee Place of of interest  Unlisted equity securities,
companies incorporation held at costs Impairment Carrying value
iget 3
BEIRELARER MRS BA  ELWRARS  REAE A REE
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Zg2--f _—T——% ZB--f _T——% ZB-Cf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL BT T TAL TiEn
Ergomics Co., Ltd. (‘Ergomics”)  The Republic of Korea 15% - 2,104 - - - 2,104
B
ILC Co., Ltd. (‘ILC") The Republic of Korea 20% 3,429 3,546 - - 3,429 3,546
B
3,429 5,650 - - 3,429 5,650
Reclassified as disposal group  EH P EAHIFLEZ
held for sale HEARR (3,429) - - - (3,429) -
Tota @ - 5,650 - - - 5,650

Ergomics is principally engaged in production, sale and trading
of PIP products and equipment. The carrying amount of
investment in Ergomics is HK$2,104,000, representing
approximately 15% equity interest in Ergomics. No dividend
was received or receivable during the year. In August 2011, the
Group had disposed of a wholly-owned subsidiary, Temuijin
Strategic Investment Il Limited which held the equity interest in
Ergomics at a consideration of HK$2,105,000.

ILC is principally engaged in producing, distributing and
managing self-service coin counting machines, information
technology and e-commerce business. The carrying amount of
investment in ILC as at 31 March 2012 is KRW500,000,000,
which is equivalent to approximately HK$3,429,000. No
dividend was received or receivable during the year. At 31
March 2012, the directors of the Company had assessed that
no impairment loss was required to be made for the investment
in ILC. In April 2012, the Company had disposed of the
subsidiary, Asia Light Limited and its subsidiary, Temujin
Investments Korea Co., Limited which held the equity interest in
ILC. Therefore, at the end of reporting period, the investment in
ILC was reclassified as disposal group held for sale.

Ergomics £ EHM FHERHEESH TR FRE
R EMMKE o P Ergomics Z X EREE
7%2,104,0007% 7T * 18 & F Ergomics £715% A
KL o AFEALED W EURES - R
T——FN\A  AEBELARK{E2,105,0007% T
& — K2 & M B2 7 Temujin Strategic
Investment Il Limited * #% 2 &]4% & Ergomics 2
R AR -

LCEBRELE DHEREEEBBEHK
BRI LREFEBEL RZE—Z=-F=A
=+—8  RILC Z#& & IRHEE A 500,000,000
8T (LB 3,429,000 7T ) ° AEE NI
EOWSREWERS - N E——F=A=+—
B ARREZESETHBERRILCZIREE
EEMBEER - R-_ZT——FW0A - XQF
it & — X B /2 &) Asia Light Limited 5 EL i B
A Bl Temujin Investments Korea Co., Limited -
ZERNBFAILCZBARER - Bt - RIS
HR ICRECEFDHEARBFHEZESE
485 -
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18. IHENBEE (&)

18. Available-for-sale Financial Assets (continued)

Note iii: B i :
Name of investee Place of Unlisted debt Fair value
companies incorporation securities, at cost adjustment Carrying value
BEZIRENRER {7 A AL 3 B FLmERES  EERAE AVERE RREE
2012 2012 2012
—E-—-F —EB-——-F —E-—-F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THT FTHET TAT THET THT
Splendid Beauty Salon  British Virgin 9,000 — (98) — 8,902 —
Holding Co., Ltd. Islands
(formerly known as RBHRHS
Smart Planner Limited)
BRRFEEETER
B A7) (711 Smart
Planner Limited)
Babie’s Holdings British Virgin 9,500 - (217) — 9,283 —
Limited Islands
BRERAERAR RBHRHE
18,500 - (315) — 18,185 —

On 29 September 2011, the Company invested in the 8%
unsecured convertible bonds issued by Babie’s Holdings
Limited (“Babie’s”) at a face value of HK$9,500,000, bearing
coupon interest rate of 8% per annum. Babie’s is an investment
holding company and its business is principally engaged in early
childhood education catering for children’s social, emotional
and academic development in the PRC. The convertible bonds
due on 29 September 2015 (“2015 Convertible Bonds”) are
convertible into fully paid ordinary shares of Babie’s with a par
value of USD1.00 each at a conversion price of HK$100,000
per share. The Company can exercise the conversion at
anytime until the maturity date.

RZTB——FAAZTNR  KRERERE

2ERAERAR (B3] 8172 8EEEMA
BmRES - 25 EHMHEA9,500,0007% 7T -

REENEGFSEE - ARAKREERRA
A EEXBARPEREZEMNZHE - U
RENTEMR  BHEREDESTEAZER -
ABmEEFER -_E—RAFNA - TN BEEH
((ZZE—RFARRES])  TRERETR
100,000 T8 B = B REE1.00E T2
BB R AR o ANA B A] A EIHA B AT R B
T TERRRAE -
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18. Available-for-sale Financial Assets (continued) 18. T HEBRBEE (&)

On 30 September 2011, the Company invested in the 8%
unsecured convertible bonds issued by Splendid Beauty Salon
Holding Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Smart Planner Limited)
(“Splendid”) at a face value of HK$9,000,000, bearing coupon
interest rate of 8% per annum. Splendid is an investment
holding company and its business is principally engaged in
professional and quality beauty treatments, services and
products in the PRC. The convertible bonds due on 30
September 2014 (“2014 Convertible Bonds”) are convertible
into fully paid ordinary shares of Splendid with a par value of
USD1.00 each at a conversion price of HK$100,000 per share.
The Company can exercise the conversion at anytime until the
maturity date.

In June 2012, the 2015 Convertible Bonds and the 2014
Convertible Bonds were fully redeemed by the issuers.

19. Interests in an Associate

RZTE——FNA=18 ARAFHEER B
WRHEHEEDERABR A A (A 8Smart
Planner Limited) ([ BiAE* |) 317 2 8 B E K
AR R 5 - 525 H 7% E 8 749,000,000 %
T MBENRSFSEFE - BHBEE AR
BERBAT - EBEBARPERESIERE
BEAER BRERER - TRREHFR =T
—MENA=ZTAIE (=T —NF A RRE
%) AR IR (E B 8% 100,000 7 7T K 486K B
MEHSREE1.00E T2 B RFE B -
A RV AT A BB B AT PR R AT R 4R AR A o

RZZE—=—FRA —E—RAFAEBRESFK
ZE-UFARREFEBETABEERD -

19. R—REE QT 2EH

2012

—E—_—F

HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET THT

Cost of investment in an associate

Share of post-acquisition loss DG EEE EE

R—HKBE QR ZHREKR

6,080 —
(6) -

6,074 —
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Year ended 31 March 2012
HE-_Z——F=-A=1+—HILFE

19. Interests in an Associate (continued) 19. A—XBE QT Z2fER (&)
(@) Details of the Group’s associate at 31 March 2012 are as @ MZTE—=ZF=RA=+—H ~5EEH
follows: ERRZHBOT -
Place of Issued and  Percentage of
establishment/ fully paid equity held Proportion of  Principal
Name of associate operation registered capital by the Group voting rights  activities
BERTR REEfRE
BENTEH B/ B HREMER E#Rpot RERLH FEEHR
Bonicast Construction PRC Registered 49% 20%  Trading of
Material (Beijing) Co., Ltd. RMB10,000,000 (note 1) construction
(“Bonicast Beijing”) materials
SEEEREMH (LR HE A 49% 20% BHES
ARAA(EHIER]) AR 10,000,0007C (FzE1)
Note 1:  The Group is able to exercise significant influence over Biit 1 AEBEHHSHEILRITEERY
Bonicast Beijing because it has 20% voting rights in 29 RERBRBZRRBAELE
accordance with the shareholders’ agreement. B 20% R
(o) Summarised financial information in respect of the b)) BHEAEEBERARZHBEERRBE
Group’s associate is set out below: HIET
2012
—E—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Total assets BERE 12,353 —
Total liabilities BEenm (12) —
Net assets BEFE 12,341 —
Group’s share of net assets of an associate REEDE—FKEZE QA
ZBEFE 6,074 —
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Year ended 31 March 2012
HE-_Z——F=-A=1+—HILFE

19. Interests in an Associate (continued) 19. A—XBE QT Z2fER (&)
(b)  (continued) ) (&)
2012 2011
= —FT—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tz FHEIT
Total revenue WA 4R = -
Total loss for the period N ERR B AR (12) -
Group’s share of loss of an associate AEEDE—R
B AR 2B (6) —
20. Financial Assets Held for Trading 20. HEFEENBEE
2012 2011
—E2—=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Hong Kong listed equity securities, EBLTMRAEZS - KmE
at market value 614 —

CHINA INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT LIMITED HE R & Z AR T
102



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 9 M i
BEIF CE=AZi-RLER

20. Financial Assets Held for Trading (continued)  20. H{EBEBHBREE (&)
The following is particulars of the financial assets held for NTRR-ZZB-——F=A=1+—HB2EFEEE
trading as at 31 March 2012: WIEEE S -

Net assets

Percentage attributable

Name of Place of Number of of Market Change in to the
investee company incorporation shares held interest held value fair value Company

FristEss ADTREL

EZREQFER R 3L i B FrERO#E BAk 2% mE AVESF EERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAET THT TET BT

China Investment and Cayman Islands 1,288,000 0.211% 864 614 (250) 1,143
Finance Group Limited FIS8 S ordinary shares
(CIFG") (note i) 1,288,000 %
FER A SE LAk
BRERAF]
(THExRpEEE])
(Fft 5T 1)
A brief description of the business and financial information of BIE L5 EMRAEHF 2 S g WmE - K
the above listed equity security, based on their latest financial EBRMBERM RO

statements, is as follow:

() China Investment and Finance Group Limited is principally () HFEREEREEEERAARFENEZRE
engaged in investment in listed and unlisted companies in REBREIINTEGz EMRIFLTAF -

Hong Kong and overseas market.

The unaudited net profit attributable to the owners of HE—_Z2——FNA=Z+HIEXEAR -
China Investment and Finance Group Limited for the six FRERESBEBRARESR AELR
months ended 30 September 2011 was approximately KEEIZ AT 495 3,679,000 7T - AFE
HK$3,679,000. No dividend was received during the year. RINE A B AR S o
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Year ended 31 March 2012
HE-_Z——F=-A=1+—HILFE

21. Loans Receivable 21. BEREXK
The balances comprise loans and interests receivable as follow: EHRBEUTERKESREFE
2012
—E—_—F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT FAT
Loans to third parties RETFE=ZAZER - 21,275
Accrued interest FEETHIE = 4,339
- 25,614
Less: Balances due within one year included B FTARBEE
in current assets —FRE B - (25,614)
Non-current portion e ENEL = -
22, Other Receivables, Deposits and 22, HihEWFIE - RERFEFRE
Prepayments
2012 2011
—E——4F —=——F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FBxT FHIT
Interest receivable FEUR) B 363 —
Prepayments and deposits paid FERNFERE TS 2,954 1,159
3,317 1,159
The directors consider that the carrying amount of other EERAHMBEWRIE - ke RIENFIE 2K
receivables, deposits and prepayments approximate their fair HEEEATFERS -
value.
23. Amount due from a shareholder 23. Bl —EBRRMIEA
The amount represented the share of office rental and building BRAREEA R FEREREFR D A)EHE
management expenses undertaken by Jade Bright Limited, a DEZHAEREREFERRL - NZF
substantial shareholder of the Company. The balance as at 31 —ZHF=A=+T—HZ##%43,884,000% T
March 2012 amounting to approximately HK$3,884,000 has BERZE——FRNAER -

been settled in June 2012.
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Year ended 31 March 2012
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24. Bank and Cash Balances and Bank Overdraft 24. $R{TRASEFURBITES

25.

26.

2012
—E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET FATT
Bank deposits BITIE 5,954 22
Cash in hand FHEES - 1
5,954 23
Bank overdraft BITEX = (309)
5,954 (286)

The effective interest rates of the deposits range from 0.05% to
0.1% (2011: 0.01% to 0.05%) per annum and all of them have
a maturity within three months from initial inception.

Amount Due to a Shareholder
The amount due to a shareholder are unsecured, interest free
and have no fixed repayment term.

Convertible Bonds

On 17 June 2009, the Company issued 12% coupon
convertible bonds due on 17 June 2012 in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$40,000,000 with a conversion price of
HK$1.60 per ordinary share of HK$0.20 (subject to adjustment)
of the Company.

The fair value of the liability component and equity conversion
component were determined upon the issuance of the
convertible bonds.

The fair value of the liability component, included in non-current
liabilities, was calculated based on the estimated discounted
cash flow over the remaining contractual terms of the
convertible bonds and discounted using a market interest rate
for an equivalent non-convertible bond. The discounted rate of
the liabilities component of the convertible bonds was
approximately 33.6%. The residual amount, representing the
value of equity conversion component, was included in the
shareholders’ equity under “convertible bonds equity reserve”.

25.

26.

GBRZEEMENTEFE0.05%E0.1% (=
T ——14F : 0.01% £0.05%) * MAAFRHIH
BORTERGEEt =@ B N EIE -

B — BRRFAIEA
N —ZERRFAAREE 2B REETE
5 -

AR ES
RZZBEZNFARA+TEH ARFETASLE
%8 /40,000,000 70 * R T —ZF X A
BRI BEA12% 2 AT BRES - AR
RIEREE0.204 L2 BiRmiREIREA1.60%5
T (A FFE) -

BEMD REGERES Z AFERETAR

REFREE

BEADZAFEFAFRDEE - LWREA
BERESHTROPREBEEFTREES
ZTSNERER 2 At RBR e REFE - 7
BEREFAED 2R KL R33.6% ° Kk
EBEERZBREOZEE DA TTHREK
A TR -
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26. Convertible Bonds (continued)
The movement of liabilities component of the convertible bonds
for the years is set out below:

26. R ES(EZ)

AHREFAESINZEFE2EHNT

The Group

and the Company

AEERARD T

HK$’000

F&T

Proceeds of issue BITRT1SRUA 40,000
Equity component M ER D (13,370)
Liability component at date of issue RETHRZ BEEHD 26,630
Liability component at 1 April 2010 RZZE—ZFNHA—BZEEHS 29,162
Interest accrued i3 quf 2 3,916
Imputed interest charged HEF B H 3,343
Converted into ordinary shares EERnAsLTER (5,892)

Liability component at 31 March 2011 and
1 April 2011

Interest accrued

Imputed interest charged

Interest paid

Redeemed during the year

RZE——F=A=t+—RBKk=T—F

MA—Bz&aEHD 30,529
FEEHFE 63
HER S H 85
BAFE (3,980)
NEZEM (26,697)

Liability component at 31 March 2012

R-E——H=ZA=t+—HZAaEHD

Imputed interest on the convertible bonds is calculated on the
effective yield basis by applying the effective interest rate for an
equivalent non-convertible bond to the liability component of
the convertible bonds.

The liability component is measured at amortised cost. The
interest accrued on convertible bonds for the year of
HK$63,000 (2011: HK$3,916,000) is calculated based on 12%
per annum on principal amount of convertible bonds. The
imputed interest charged for the year of HK$85,000 (2011:
HK$3,343,000) is calculated by applying an effective interest
rate of 29.47% to the outstanding liability component. Interest
paid in the current year is HK$3,980,000 (2011: HK$nil). The
effective interest rate is determined by independent valuer at
the date of issuing of convertible bonds.

AR E S E R B AR ES A ERS
ZEEFARBESERMN IR EROREE
BEHH o

BEBD DREENRAE - REEARKRE
% 2 FEETF B A63,0008 (=T ——F
3,916,000/ 7T) - NEFERAIBRKES 2 A®
B12% T H - NF EHHE N S X H %85,000
BIT(ZZF ——4 :3,343,000/870) © JhigE
BEBEMOHKAERENE2047%H - K
FEENFIEA3,980,0008 (=T ——F :
THIT) c ERFIE BB hEMAN LT
BREHBHET -
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26. Convertible Bonds (continued) 26. TTERESR(E)

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the convertible bonds,
so long as any bond remains outstanding, the Company will not
create or permit to subsist any mortgage, charge, pledge, lien
or other form of encumbrance or security interest upon the
whole or any part of its undertaking, assets or revenues,
present or future, to secure, guarantee or indemnify in respect
of any present or future indebtedness of the Company other
than loans from banks or licensed or registered financial
institutions unless, at the same time or prior thereto, the
Company’s obligation under the bonds (a) are secured equally
and ratably therewith or benefit from a guarantee or indemnity
in substantially identical terms thereto, as the case may be or (b)
have the benefit of such other security, guarantee, indemnity or
other arrangement as the bondholders shall approve by an
ordinary resolution.

During the year, the Company had fully redeemed the
convertible bonds. The total consideration paid to redeem the
convertible bonds is allocated to liability and equity components
at the date of redemption. The difference between the
consideration allocated to the liability component and its
carrying value at the date of redemption is recognised in profit
or loss. The amount of consideration allocated to the equity
component is recognised in equity.

The redemption results in gain of approximately HK$5,393,000
and a decrease of HK$10,696,000 in the convertible bonds
equity reserve.

RIBAHER E S 2GR R &N - REBEAES
HARITE - RRBH I EHEBHLIRK 2R
RS RR D e~ BEKMAR HAFFF
FEEMRSE - W G HERKEMBTA
ZERBESEIRER - IER - BRICEE
PREE AR RHE 3R B SR K 2 (B IR (BRTTH
W RE T & B AR 2 B ARER SN ) - IER AR R B
Rz fl - ARANEFB T ZEEQ@QERFR
R IR PSR A R 2 M s IR R A B A AR R
ZWmERECRBEAME) FEEREO)EEE
FRBAAETBRBERIMEZ ZFHLMEIR
PER  MEREREMD LT Z FIZERI o

FARARREBREERTRRES - sLEQ
ABEESFMEN 2 @RENELD R RS ERE
BERERISD REEDEH DEEAEE
DZRERHEFHERNZ ZENEE®R - D
= am i 2 RESRENERER -

T

B (0] 2 B 5% 15 U 35 49 5,393,000 7 7T K2 AT #4 fi%
%ﬁéﬁzfuﬁfﬁfx 10,696,000 % 7T,

_\
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27. Share Capital

Authorised:

At 1 April 2010, 31 March 2011 and

Year ended 31 March 2012
HE-_Z——F=-A=1+—HILFE

27. R

Number of
ordinary ordinary
shares of shares of
HK$0.20 each HK$0.01 each
SREE BREE
0.208 T2 0.01&T2
SEREE ZBEREAE

Number of

R-_ZE-TFHA—H -

Nominal
value
HK$’000

EfE

1 April 2011 —T——%®=A=+—H
r=—Z——FMA—H 500,000,000 — 100,000
Capital reorganisation (note a) pEAEAE (Hista) (500,000,000) 10,000,000,000 —
At 31 March 2012 R-E——F=A=+—H — 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRER
At 1 April 2010 R-ZE—ZFNMA—H 25,250,760 — 5,050
Conversion of convertible bonds R RIS E S5
(note b) (H3ED) 5,000,000 — 1,000
At 31 March 2011 and 1 April 2011 R-Z——F=A=+—H
r=ZF——FMA—H 30,250,760 — 6,050
Capital reorganisation (note a) A EAE (fizEa) (30,250,760) 30,250,760 (5,747)
Issue of shares (note c) BITRRD (FisEc) - 600,000,000 6,000
At 31 March 2012 R-E——F=A=+—H — 630,250,760 6,303
Notes: Biat

(@) The capital reorganisation of the Company was effective on 6
April 2011 by way of a reduction of share capital which involved
a subdivision of each share of HK$0.20 each into 20 new shares
of HK$0.01 each and the cancellation of 19 of every 20 issued
shares in the share capital of the Company after the subdivision
of shares, so effectively the share capital of the Company was
reduced to the extent that HK$0.19 of the paid-up capital of the
Company on each of the existing issued share of HK$0.20 was
cancelled.

(b) On 3 May 2010, the convertible bonds were converted into
5,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each with principal
amount of HK$8,000,000 at a conversion price of HK$1.60 per
share.

RARARARABLAERN -_S——FMWANBE
W FERBHRERA  BERSREEREE
0.208 7T 2 B D #F 48 & 20 IR & IR EE0.01 7%
TLZ AR K A B AR 4118 6 A A BRI AN &
20MRE BITIRIDEEES 1908 - AT A RIAR AR
FE EBRTEIR - BNi§ AR A RS REE0.20
Bz BB ETRG Z B AEH019
T °

R-ZT—TFRA=H A% % A8,000000
BTz IR ERIZERESR1.608TE
#1/55,000,0000% F IR EEO.20/8 L2 Eima% o
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27. Share Capital (continued) 27. BAR (&)

Notes: (continued) Bt - (&)

(¢ On 6 April 2011, the Company completed the issue of © R-Z——FMAXA REAAQFEEIR
600,000,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each to Jade Bright FEERRRPABRABMIZARHAE =T —
Limited, the existing substantial shareholder of the Company, at TFE+-_ATHZRERZE(KAHAEZZ
the consideration of HK$60,000,000 under subscription ——F—A+=ZBz2HRHBEFER) ARA
agreement dated 10 December 2010 (as supplemented by the FERK M 22 87 5 IR 2 7] %% 17 600,000,000 & & A%
supplemental agreement dated 13 January 2011) and entered HE0.018 T 2 ¥ MKk tn - K& &60,000,000
into between the Company and Jade Bright Limited. Immediately BT - RRERE T g - RPRARAFE
after the completion of the subscription agreement, Jade Bright BERNBEIREE RS 129,418,000 B
Limited had then placed 129,418,000 new shares to six fxf5 °

independent investors.

28. Reserves 28. f#fE
Convertible
Investment bonds Share
Share  revaluation Warrant equity option  Exchange Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
© BEER  2BER  ERME ) " '
Ry fife fife Eafif  BREG EiGfE Zitkl 5
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000
B Thn 7 Tin T ThL Tin TEn
At 1 Aprl 2010 R-F-TEMA-A 83,206 (455) 842 13370 - 372 (105,520) 4833
Other comprehensive th2Eks/ (B3
income/[expense) - (420) - - - 990 - 570
Loss for the year AEEEE - - - - - - (13.283) (13,289
Total comprehensive FERRERRAE
expense for the year - (420) - - - 990 (13283 {12713
Conversion of HATaRES
convertble bonds 7,566 - - (2,674) - - - 4,892
At 31 March 2011 and RE-—£Zf
1 Aprl 2011 Zt-BR-E—%
mA-A 90,771 (679) 842 10696 - 4715 (118803) (12,654)
Other comprehensive E2ENE/ (RS
income/(expense) - (315) - - - 334 - 19
Loss for the year KEREE - - - - - - (6,262 (6,26
Total comprehensive FERZERTAE
expense for the year - (319) - - - 334 (6.262) (6,243
Capita reorganisation i ©0.771) - - - - - 9,518 5,747
Redemption of BETARES
convertible bonds - - - (10,69) - - - 10,69)
Issue of shares ki 54,000 - - - - - - 54,000
Share ssue expenses RiEARE (2 - - - - - - 2)
Eiminated! upon disposal HERHE - 875 - - - - - 875
Reversalof EE I F
unlisted warrants - - (842) - - - 842 -
Recognifon of equity-setfed ~ BREREED
share-Dased payments ORES - - - - 4730 - - 4730
At 31 March 2012 R-E-"E=F
=t-H 53948 (313) - - 4730 5,049 (27,105) 3,707
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Year ended 31 March 2012
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29. Warrants

The movement of warrants during the year are as follows:
Outstanding Issued

Date of grant
RZB—-F

MA-H

KT

FRRT

6 February 2009 4,208,460 -

“ESNE-RAH

For the year ended 31 March 2011, there was no movement of
warrants.

30. Share Option

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”), was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 9 April 2009 for the
primary purpose of providing incentive to directors and eligible
employees. Under the Scheme, the Board of Directors of the
Company may grant options to eligible employees, including
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for
shares of the Company.

At 31 March 2012, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Scheme was 41,800,000 (2011: nil), representing 6.63% (2011:
nil) of the shares of the Company in issue at that date. The total
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the
shares of the company in issue at any point in time, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options
granted to independent non-executive directors in excess of
0.1% of the Company’s share capital and with a value in excess
of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the
Company’s shareholders.

29.

Expired
at 1/4/2011 during the year during the year

ERER

14,208.460)

30.

IR
FRZRBAEBEBMT -

Outstanding Exercise
at 31/3/2012  Exercise period price
RZB-Z%
SHSSH
WA
— 6 February 2009 to HK$1.00
5 February 2012
“IENEZARER 1007

—“5--£-f1A

HE_Z——F=A=1+—RHILFE  ABE
BREEH o

BRE
ARRRBER-_ZFZNFHANABBZRE
EERMRBROERT B ([REERE)) TBEH
REEENAERER - REBERES K
AREEGARNAERER(BHRARR A
MEARES)REARBBARR RN 2B
T o

RZZE——F=A=+—8  REBRESE
ERLBMRITEEREMSEROEE B
41,800,000 (ZF——45 : ) - HERAR
AIMNEBEBITRME63%(ZF ——F:
) c ERGEADBREREEMAEZBERT
AR 45 B8 AR e 1 281 T % A BB AR AT IR IR0 B B
TEBBARA RN EMEBEETRG 10% -
WAMAIE N FEITE R 2 R BB A DR
M4 0.1% K (B {EH#E 1 5,000,000 7t » Al /A%
RATRREFHE -
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Year ended 31 March 2012
HE-_Z——F=-A=1+—HILFE

30. Share Option (continued) 30.
Consideration of HK$1.00 is payable by each grantee upon
acceptance of an option.

SRR ()
B SR  BRAR S FE (T U1 1,008 T

Granted Exercised
At during during At Exercise price
Category Date of grant 1/4/2011 the year the year 31/3/2012 Exercise period per share
RZB-——F R-B-ZF
]| Rt A mA-H FRE FRfTE =A=t+-A Cigid BRITEE
Executive director 30 March 2012 - 6,300,000 - 6,300,000 30 March 2012 to HK$0.2552
HiTESR —T--fZf 30 March 2017 0.2552 7T
=+H —Z-ZF=A=+H
Z-Z—t%=R
=+H
Non-executive director 30 March 2012 — 6,300,000 - 6,300,000 30 March 2012 to HK$0.2552
FHITES —T--FZR 30 March 2017 0.2552 7T
=+A “E-Zf=A=+H
Z2-2-+4-R
=+H
Independent non-executive 30 March 2012 - 2,000,000 — 2,000,000 30 March 2012 to HK$0.2552
directors —Z-—#=f 30 March 2017 0.255278 7T
BUFRTES =18 ZE-CHEZA=TH
ZE—+E=R
=1H
Employee 30 March 2012 — 1,000,000 — 1,000,000 30 March 2012 to HK$0.2552
(= —T--fZH 30 March 2017 0.2552 /7T
=+A “Z-Zf=A=+H
i S ey
=+H
Consultants 30 March 2012 - 26,200,000 - 26,200,000 30 March 2012 to HK$0.2552
B “T-—F=f 30 March 2017 0.2552 /87T
=+A “E-ZF=A=+H
222+ E-R
=+H
Total - 41,800,000 - 41,800,000
@t

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain directors, employee and consultants. Equity-settled
share-based payments are measured at fair value (excluding
the effect of non market-based vesting conditions) at the date
of grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of the
equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Company’s
estimate of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the
effect of non market-based vesting conditions.

AEBEAETES BEENMERBTEEEE
VARR AR (5 3R = 8 2 A B DA B I 19 SRR 1R HH B A
BAFEFE(TEEAETSRERZEHB
Gtz REREANETZEREEI
PR THE - TR & B8 S 4R 57 B Ak
ARG S RLPASET I R AT 2 SR IR 1T
ZRHBELRAE  LEGRENEBHAZE -
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30.

31.

32.

Year ended 31 March 2012

He—ZT——HF#=-F=+—HItFE

Share Option (continued)

The fair value of the total options granted in the year measured
as at the date of grant on 30 March 2012 was approximately
HK$4,730,000. The following significant assumptions were
used to derive the fair value using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model:

1. an expected volatility range of 88.77 per cent;
2. expected annual dividend yield range equal to zero;

3.  the estimated expected life of the options granted during
the year is 2.5 years; and

4.  the quoted risk free rate with expected life of 2.5 years
were 0.3055 per cent, which are adopted to calculate the
fair value of options granted on 30 March 2012.

The Black-Scholes option pricing model requires the input of
highly subjective assumptions, including the volatility of share
price. As changes in subjective input assumptions can materially
affect the fair value estimated, in the directors’ opinion, the
existing model does not necessarily provide a reliable single
measure of the fair value of the share options.

Net Asset/Liability Value Per Share

Net asset/liability value per share is calculated by dividing the
net asset included in the consolidated statement of financial
position of approximately HK$42,010,000 (2011: net liabilities
of HK$6,604,000) and the number of ordinary shares in issue
as at 31 March 2012, being 630,250,760 (2011: 30,250,760).

Related Party Transactions

(@ Compensation of key management personnel, including
the directors and other members of key management,
during the year is as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind

30. BREE)

31.

32.

¥re o ERREDHE

REHEBH-_Z—=—F=A=+0 FREX
R EA S 2 AT EL H4,730,000% 7T
LTARERBNR — sFTRMMEBAEEERAG
BENFEMAEAER

TR IR E5[E £ 88.77% :

—

2. TEHRSFEHERERT:

3. FACRLBRERAFH/25F R

4. RENIEETF B R 2.5F BT A b A &
0.3055% T BN —E——F=A=+H
PR h R 2 A FE

AR — FRNTHEEERAERBARE
TERR - BREBRMERKE fRIHBA
BRAEZAEEHRAFEMTERNEATE
BEEFRAAABEARLARRAIZE—FE
BT EZITE -

BREE EEBFE

BREE BEFEKTAREMBMRRIEZ
BEFELN42,0100008T(ZFE——F: 8
f&/F1E%)6,604,0008TT)BRUAR T —=—F =
A=+—H 22 %17% MRk £630,250,760
f% (== ——% : 30,250,760 J&) 5t & -

BEALXRS
() TEERAR(REEFRHAMIZER
AB)ERMEHFINT :

2012
—E——fF

HK$’000
FERT

HK$’000
THT

3,856

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in
note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

EEWE 2 —FHEBRREE MR
xHizE16 -
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32. Related Party Transactions (continued)
(b)  The investment manager was remunerated based on their
respective investment management agreement as follows:

United Gain Investment Limited
(“United Gain”)

BEIEBR AR
(TBER )

32. BEALTXF (&)

(b)

BREKEERANREEASBZREERE
WA E - ARBERAT

2012
—E—_—fF

HK$’000
FTER

HK$’000
T

569 100

Note: In March 2009, the Company and United Gain entered
into an investment management agreement for appointing
United Gain as investment manager of the Group. The
annual investment management fee is equivalent to the
higher of HK$100,000 or 1.25% of the Group’s net asset
value, provided that such annual fee shall not exceed
HK$600,000. On 30 April 2012, the Company and United
Gain agreed to terminate the investment management
agreement with effect from 1 May 2012.

(c) Jade Bright Limited, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, had undertaken to share the following
expenses with the Company during the year.

Share of office rental and building
management expenses undertaken
a substantial shareholder of BFEEMYT

the Company, which remained

payable to the Company

at the year end date

RELERINENTFARRZ
RAREEZRFBHFHFRAA
by Jade Bright Limited, EEDEZHAERE R

ffit - R=ZZETNEFE= A AR EEER]
REEEMEUNRTBRAREERE
KB - GFEREEEERMAER
100,000 Tk A E B EE FE 2
1.25% (A mEBLE) EEHEFEE
8B iB 600,000 R_E—=
FWA=+8  ARBEBRBERL
REEEH# BT —-FAA—H
REAERL o

FA ARRAETERERBFERAFE
EEEEARBDIEATHX

2012
—E——F

HK$’000
FTHET

HK$'000
T

3,884 —

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 F#

113



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 M i
BEIF CE=AZi-RLER

33. Gain on Disposal of a Subsidiary 33. HE—XHEBARZW&E
On 23 August 2011, the Group disposed of a wholly-owned RZE——FENAZ+=0 AEFEHER2E
subsidiary, Temujin Investment Strategic Il Limited. An analysis /82 FlTemuiin Investment Strategic Il Limited ©
of assets and liabilities over a disposed subsidiary is as follow: FIHERBAR s EERBEIITAT

23/8/2011
—EF——F

ANB=+=8
HK$’'000
FHETT

Current assets REBEE

Available-for-sale financial assets AIHENBEE 2,104
Current liabilities REBEE

Amount due to a holding company JE S —RIZERR A T 5K E (2,104)
Net asset disposal of Rt EEEFE -

Written off of an amount due from a subsidiary 6 E U — R M B A R IE (2,104)
Consideration received BUWRE 2,105
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMBAR K 1

Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—KMBRARIZIHEERAFE

23/8/2011
—F—F

NB=—+=H
HK$’'000
T

Consideration received BURRE 2,105
Less: cash and cash equivalent balance BT ERERAESE

disposal of (ERzE= 3 —
Net cash inflow RERNFE 2,105
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34. Retirement Benefit Scheme

The Group has participated in a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all eligible employees in
Hong Kong. The assets of the Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustee. Under
the scheme, each of the Group (the employer) and its
employees makes monthly contributions to the Scheme at 5%
of the employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The contributions from
each of the employer and employees are subject to a maximum
contribution of HK$1,000 per month and thereafter
contributions are voluntary. No forfeited contribution is available
to reduce the contributions payable in the future years.

The total contributions charged to the consolidated income
statement amounted to HK$22,000 (2011: approximately
HK$33,000), representing contributions payable to the Scheme
by the Group in respect of the year ended 31 March 2012.

35. Operating Lease Commitments
At the end of reporting period, the minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases for leased premise are

payable as follow:

34. EREFGE
REEZRRAFELNBESATENEMBAE
BESEESEFTEMTANEATESE
(T#ZetEl)) - Zet B2 EERAEBMZEED
B AERAZGIZESHEE - RIEZTE -
AEE(EX)REEESARRBREEZHA(TE
F Rl AESEEIEN) 2 5% & A A&
ZELHF - BEREESAZER TR AE
H1,0008 7T ltiEZHREBR - WAL
IR A R R 2 45K

PERE R P IR 2 @ ER22,000/8 7T (=
T——%F : 433,000/ 7T) - Ml mANEEFE
ECR-_HF-A=t-HIFERZIE
(NPFALS

35. REHERIE
RIBERF - AEBBETARNELHERH
AEWERN Y SEBLHBEWT :

2012 2011

—E2—=F —E——fF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHEx T

Within one year —FN 2,664 —
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEFEZFRFAN(BEEEMTE) 2,664 —
5,328 —
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HE-_Z——F=-A=1+—HILFE

36. Financial Information of the Company 36. ARAFZHBER
2012 2011
—B——fF —=——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Non-current assets EmENEE
Property, plant and equipment L E N 2,837 110
Available-for-sale financial assets AHENKEE 18,185 1,117
Investment in subsidiaries (note a) RITBAE 2 %E (Hizta) 2 —
21,024 1,227
Current assets MENEE
Financial assets held for trading BIFEEVHKERE 614 -
Amount due from subsidiaries (note b) FEUR KT~ B F A (FisEDb) 36,195 31,966
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments — E{th fEYFIE -« 24 RIFE[ KB 3,317 378
Amount due from a shareholder FE U — B R R FE 3,884 -
Bank and cash balances BAIRREER 5,779 15
49,789 32,359
Current liabilities mENaE
Bank overdrafts RITEX = 309
Other payables and accrued charges Hib RN RBEREANER 1,224 4,231
Amount due to a shareholder B —Z IR FIE - 4,200
Amount due to a subsidiary (note b) B —RM B2 F5KE (MfFEDb) 32,782 4,808
34,006 13,548
Net current assets MENVEEFE 15,783 18,811
Non-current liability ERBEE
Convertible bonds AR ES - 30,529
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(B&)FE 36,807 (10,491)
Capital and reserves BRREE
Share capital A& A 6,303 6,050
Reserves (note ¢) & (faEc) 30,504 (16,541)
Total equity/(capital deficiency) e aaEE (A ANE L) 36,807 (10,491)
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36. Financial Information of the Company 36. RARQTFZHMBER (&)
(continued)
Notes: BtaF -
(@) Subsidiaries (a) =G|

Details of the subsidiaries at 31 March 2012 are as follows:

RIZB-——F=ZA=+—H MBRARFEN
T~

Place of Issued and fully Principal
Name of subsidiary incorporation paid up capital Interest held activities
NGt & {1 B 3L 3t B ERITRAZKRE FrfsREs FEER
2012 2011
—B-—-fF Z—T—F
Directly held:
EERE:
Asia Light Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 100% 100% Investment holding
G 18T RERK
China Equity Assets Holdings ~ Hong Kong HK$1 100% — Investment holding
Limited o 1787 KREEK
HEREEEEERRAA
Master Smooth Investment Hong Kong HKS$1 100% — Investment holding
Development Limited &5 1B AR
ERREERARAA
Perfect Worth Investment British Virgin Islands  US$100 100% — Investment holding
Limited REBERES 100 7T RERK
Smart Access Capital Limited ~ British Virgin Islands  US$100 100% — Investment holding
RERERES 1003 7T RERK
Indirectly held:
B#EREE -
Temujin Investments Korea Co., The Republic KRWS5,745,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited of Korea 5,745,000,000 8 7T REER
2

(b)

Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed

repayment term.

(b)

FEW, (FEAS) ME B 2 Rl 2 K08
ZEFRTEER - 2B REEEERY -
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36. Financial Information of the Company 36. KATZHMKER (&)
(continued)
Notes: (continued) Bt - (&)
(c) Reserves (c) f#EE

Convertible
Investment bonds Share
Share  revaluation Warrant equity option Accumulated

premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total

REEfF  AREER  TEREH
B& f#fe fife  EuRE BRERR  RER &5t
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$ 000

ThL FiEn TEL TR TR TEL T

At 1 April 2010 RZZF-SFMWA-H 83,206 (455) 842 13,370 - (101,802) (4,840)
Other comprehensive expenses Et2 AR - (420) - - - - (420)
Loss for the year KEEEE - - - - - (16,173) (16,173)
Total comprehensive expenses TEELERRLE

for the year - (420) - - - (16,173) (16,593)
Exercise of convertible bonds TEARES 7,566 - - (2,674) - - 4,892
At 31 March 2011 and K-Z——FZA=1-H

1 April 2011 r=5——%RA-A 90,771 (875) 842 10,696 - (117,975) (16,541)
Other comprehensive expenses E2 AR - (815) - - - - (815)
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - (7,244) (7,244)
Total comprehensive expenses TEERERNAE

for the year - (319) - - - (7,244) (7,559
Capital reorganisation hrE4 (90,771) - - - - 96,518 5,747
Redemption of convertiole bonds BB E% - - - (10,696) - - (10,696)
Issue of shares Bkl 54,000 - - - - - 54,000
Share issue expenses BB aRY (52) - - - - - (52)
Eliminated upon disposal HERHE - 875 - - - - 875
Reversal of unlisted warrants B3k LR - - (842) - - 842 -
Recognition of equity-setled ERREEENROAR

share-based payments - - - - 4,730 - 4730
At 31 March 2012 iy o = 53,948 (319) - - 4730 (27,859) 30,504
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37. Events After The End of Reporting Period

(@)

On 21 February 2012, the Board announced that the
Company entered into the agreement with an
independent third party (the “Purchaser”) pursuant to
which the Company has conditionally agreed to sell to the
Purchaser the 100% equity interest in Asia Light Limited
and its subsidiary at a cash consideration of HK$1 million.
The disposal had been completed on 20 April 2012.

On 30 April 2012, the Company entered into an
investment management agreement with China Everbright
Securities (HK) Limited (“China Everbright”), the new
investment manager of the Company, for a period of three
years effective from 1 May 2012. The annual investment
management fee payable to China Everbright is
HK$720,000.

38. Comparatives Figures
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform

with the current year’s presentation.

37. BEHMKRKERER

(@)

RZE——F-_A-+—H EBFg5
i ApeE—EBILE=FTEH]
AN HE - Bt AARAKRERER
B 7 & Asia Light Limited Kz H & 2 7]
100% I A 7 + 3 & K 8 /1,000,000
BT HEER - Z——FMA-+H
TERK ©

RZZE——FMUWA=+RH AR AH
MR EKEBEPRAREZS(BE)EAR
AI(HRBEARDETIREER B 8
ZE—ZFRA-ARER - BEI=F -
BEENFEAAZEEERERA
720,00078 7T °

\

<

Iy

38. LLEHF
ETHERBFEREN A BUNAAFEZR
BRI o
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2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—E--f —FT—4% —F-F ChE —TENF
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
FTHERT FHET FHETT FHET FHET
RESULTS £
Revenue ON 748 — 2,421 1 44
Loss before taxation BRALATERE (7,293) (16,173) (25,797) (5,091) (18,920)
Taxation g = — — _ _
Loss for the year from continuing 5 E& &£ 7 KEEEE
operations (7,293) (16,173) (25,797) (5,091) (18,920)
Profit from discontinued ERIEEERE EH
operations 1,031 2,890 — — —
Loss attributable to shareholders & E fE(5 &8 (6,262) (13,283) (25,797) (5,091) (18,920)

At 31 March

R=A=+—H
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
“E-—f —T——F —T-LF —_TTHF —_TT)\&F
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
THEx THAT FTAT TAT FTAT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE

Non-current assets EREEE 27,096 7,160 8,153 1,632 1,747
Current assets REBE 18,146 26,796 23,680 3,609 7,423
Current liabilities MEAE (3,232)  (10,031) (2,454) (523) (116)
Non-current liability ERBaE - (30,529) (29,162) — —
Total equity/(capital deficiencies) #4258,/ (B AN E4t) 42,010 (6,604) 217 4,718 9,054
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